## Other publications in the series "The history of the IKF"

- The history of the IKF and the IKF World Korfball Championship
- . The history of the IKF and the World Games
- The history of the IKF European Korfball Championship
- The history of the IKF Asia Oceania Korfball Championship
- The history of the IKF and the IKF U23 World Korfball and IKF U21 European Korfball Championship
- · The history of the IKF and its referees



#### International Korfball Federation

Postal Box 417 3700 AK ZEIST The Netherlands

Telephone +31 343 499 655 Telefax +31 343 499 650 E-mail office@ikf.org



www.facebook.com/korfball.org



@korfball

# The history of the IKF Europa Cup tournament for club teams



## **CONTENTS**

THE HISTORY OF THE TAP EUROPA Cup, event for club teams	1
Germany joins in 1976	1
Riviera, the first Belgian winner in 1977	1
Open only to champion teams in 1979 and thereafter; the last three-zone outdoor tournaments	1
The first indoor tournament in 1985, now including Spain and France	2
Portugal (1988) and Poland (1989) join	2
Tournaments in Papendrecht (1990) and Lisbon (1991), now including Czechoslovakia	2
The period 1992–1995: Armenia, Luxemburg, Hungary and Slovakia enter their champion clubs; first round matches necessary	
1996 and 1997: Six clubs in final round	3
From 1998: Back to eight teams in the finals.	4
In 2005; the 20th indoor IKF Europa Cup tournament; now including Russia	6
In 2008 Greece, Italy and Scotland participate	7
The 2009 IKF Europa Cup; high level korfball and many exciting matches.	7
25th IKF Europa Cup 2010; the next winner of the Alfons Janssens Cup is?	8
IKF Europa Cup 2011; the final round returns to Hungary	8
IKF Europa Cup 2012; the final for the first time in Poland	9
IKF Europa Cup 2013; Budapest was again the city for the finals	10
IKF Europa Cup 2014; Papendrecht is the city for the 48th finals	12
IKF Europa Cup 2015; the 49th final round was played in Tielen and Herentals, Belgium	13
IKF Europa Cup 2016; Budapest was the place to be for the 50th finals	14
IKF Europa Cup 2017; Sassenheim, Netherlands was playing field	15
IKF Europa Cup 2018; Platja d'Aro, Catalonia hosts the 52nd edition	
IKF Europa Cup 2019; Kortrijk, Belgium will host the 53rd edition	18
APPENDIX I - Winners three-zone events (1967 - 1986)	19
NUMBER OF TIMES CUP WAS WON	19
APPENDIX II Clubs participating in the three-zone tournaments	20
NUMBER OF CLUBS PARTICIPATING (in the period 1967 – 1986)	20
NUMBER OF TIMES CLUBS PARTICIPATED IN THE 19 TOURNAMENTS (from 1967 till 1986)	20
APPENDIX III – Review of match results in all three-zone tournaments	
I. Mitcham London (Great Britain) 18 June 1967	
2. Antwerp (Belgium) 16 June 1968	
3. Eindhoven (The Netherlands) 15 June 1969	
1. Croydon London (Great Britain) 20/21 June 1970	
5. Antwerp (Belgium) 19 and 20 June 1971	
6. Amsterdam (The Netherlands) 17/18 June 1972	
7. London (Great Britain) 6/7 October 1973	
3. Antwerp (Belgium) 5/6 October 1974	23

9. The Hague (The Netherlands) 4/5 October 1975	23
10. Mitcham London (Great Britain) 2/3 October 1976	24
11. Bochum (Germany) 1/2 October 1977	24
12. Antwerp (Belgium) 30 September/ 1 October 1978	25
13. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 29 September 1979	25
14. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 4 October 1980	25
15. Ekeren (Belgium) 3 October 1981	25
16. Nijeveen (The Netherlands) 2/3 October 1982	26
17. Antwerp (Belgium) 1/2 October 1983	26
18. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 13 April 1985	26
19. Antwerp (Belgium) 5/6 April 1986	27
Appendix IV – Winners indoor events (1985 – now)	28
EVENTS; PLAYING CITIES, COUNTRIES AND WINNERS:	28
NUMBER OF TIMES IKF EUROPA CUP WAS WON IN PERIOD 1985 TILL NOW:	29
Appendix V – Clubs participating in the final round of the indoor events	30
NUMBER OF CLUBS PARTICIPATING (period 1985 till 2018)	30
NUMBER OF TIMES CLUBS PARTICIPATED IN THE FINAL ROUND OF THE INDOOR EVENTS	30
Appendix VI – Review of match results in all club indoor korfball events	32
1. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 27/28 December 1985	32
2. Bourges (France) 27/28 December 1986	32
3. Antwerp (Belgium) 9/10 January 1988	32
4. Arnhem (The Netherlands) 7 / 8 January 1989	33
5. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 26 / 27 January 1990	34
6. Lisbon (Portugal) 12 / 13 January 1991	34
7. Saint-Etienne (France) 3 / 4 January 1992	35
8. Castrop-Rauxel (Germany) 9 / 10 January 1993	36
9. Olomouc (Czech Republic) 8 / 9 January 1994	37
10. Debrecen (Hungary) 7 / 8 January 1995	38
11. Crystal Palace, London (Great Britain) 6 / 7 January 1996	39
12. Terrassa (Spain) 4 / 5 January 1997	41
13. Antwerp (Belgium) 2–4 January 1998	43
14. Prague (Czech Republic) 7–9 January 1999	45
15. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 13-15 January 2000	47
16. Terrassa (Spain) 12-14 January 2001	49
17. Prague (Czech Republic) 10–12 January 2002	51
18. Antwerp (Belgium) 9–11 January 2003	53
19. Delft (The Netherlands) 8-10 January 2004	55
20. Saint-Etienne (France) 13–15 January 2005	57
21. Prievidza (Slovakia) 12–14 January 2006	59

22. Antwerp (Belgium) 11 – 13 January 2007	61
23. Carcavelos (Portugal) 10 - 12 January 2008	63
24. Koog aan de Zaan (The Netherlands) 21 - 24 January 2009	65
25. Herentals (Belgium) 20 - 23 January 2010	68
26. Budapest (Hungary) 19 - 22 January 2011	70
27. Warsaw (Poland) 17 - 21 January 2012	73
28. Budapest (Hungary) 16 - 19 January 2013	75
29. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 15 - 18 January 2014	77
30. Tielen / Herentals (Belgium) 14 - 17 January 2015	79
31. Budapest (Hungary) 13 - 16 January 2016 Final Round (50th edition)	80
32. Sassenheim (The Netherlands) 12 - 14 January 2017 Final Round	82
33. Platja d'Aro  (Catalonia) 11 - 13 January 2018 Final Round	84
34. Kortrijk (Belgium), 10 – 12 January 2019	86

www.worldkorfball.org is the IKF website with the results and statisitics of all IKF events, including matches, players, coaches and referees, since 2006.

## THE HISTORY of the IKF Europa Cup; event for club teams

Launched in 1967 as a three-zone korfball tournament between Great Britain, Belgium and The Netherlands

At the suggestion of the British Korfball Association (BKA), the IKF decided in 1966 to organize an annual threezone korfball tournament between those clubs which had reached the highest two places in the national competitions of the affiliated countries.

In view of the fact that at that time korfball competitions existed in Great Britain, Belgium and The Netherlands, this first tournament drew only six (6) clubs. The Cup itself was donated by the BKA in recognition of the fact that in 1967 she would be celebrating her first 21 years, her "coming of age" in the korfball world.

The first tournament was held in Mitcham (Great Britain) in June 1967, the final victory going to Ons Eibernest (NED) followed by ROHDA (NED) in second place. The Belgian teams ATBS and Scaldis gained 3rd and 5th places, with the British Thornton and Mitcham teams in 4th and 6th places.

## Germany joins in 1976

The tournament was played in each successive year with the top two teams of the same three countries competing, until the 9th tournament in the series in 1975. The Netherlands remained supreme until that time, producing nine (9) outright winning teams and seven (7) teams as runners-up. The pattern was broken somewhat, however, in 1973 and 1974 when the Riviera club from Antwerp (BEL) took second place and the silver medal. The year 1976 saw a change in the set-up for the 10th tournament in the series. The British no.2 team was replaced by the champion team from the Federal Republic of Germany. The German Gymnastics Union (Deutscher Turner Bund – DTB) had already become affiliated to the IKF in 1964 but it was in 1976 that the German champion was considered strong enough to compete in the IKF Europa Cup Tournament. An interesting facet was that the German outdoor competition had always been played in the two-zone form and this meant that any German teams taking part in the IKF Europa Cup matches were handicapped by having to play a form of korfball with which they were not familiar. Much the same situation applied to Spain which had received IKF affiliation in 1973, and it kept them out of the tournament for some time. The 10th tournament in London (ENG) in 1976, however, showed that the German champions had quite rightly been admitted to the tournament: Adler Rauxel took 5th place in front of Vultrix, the British champions. The first and second places went again to the Netherlands clubs Ons Eibernest and LUTO, with the Belgian clubs Kwik and Boeckenberg following in third and fourth positions.

## Riviera, the first Belgian winner in 1977

Only five (5) clubs were able to take part in the subsequent two (2) tournaments. Great Britain was absent for the 11th tournament in Bochum (FRG) in 1977, and The Netherlands took only one club to the 1978 tournament in Antwerp (BEL). Belgium was able to celebrate its first ever tournament victory in Bochum when Riviera beat the Dutch PKC team by 5 - 4. In 1978, however, Riviera had to be content with second place against LUTO (NED) who took the cup home to Amsterdam for the first time.

# Open only to champion teams in 1979 and thereafter; the last three-zone outdoor tournaments

Arrangements for the tournament were changed again in 1979, resulting in The Netherlands and Belgium being allowed to send only their champion team to the tournament. This meant that only four teams were able to do battle for the cup honour. It is true that in the period up to 1986 Luxemburg (1976) and France (1982) were admitted to IKF membership, but both countries had until that time only played two-zone korfball and felt themselves unequipped to compete in a three-zone tournament. The first six (6) tournaments played under the new set-up were won by The Netherlands champion with Belgian champion teams taking the second prize on five occasions. This changed in 1980 when the German champion Adler Rauxel surprised everyone by beating the Belgian Kwik team by a 9–8 score. Belgium had to wait until 1986 in Antwerp for its next cup winner: AKC, which skillfully held the Netherlands champion, Fortuna, to a 6–6 draw and finally beat her, after extra time, by the winning score of 9–7.

This tournament, however, turned out to be the last three-zone tournament. The German teams were no longer prepared to play three-zone korfball and only three (3) countries were left to compete, a number considered by the IKF to be too small to continue the tournament in its then present form.

## The first indoor tournament in 1985, now including Spain and France

The cancellation of the three-zone tournament did not mean the disappearance of the IKF Europa Cup. The IKF Executive Committee was ready for the next challenge. The first indoor Europa Cup tournament had already taken place in the Netherlands in December 1985. A new Cup had been donated by the Royal Belgian Korfball Association (KBKB) and named after Alfons Janssens, the well known Belgian korfball pioneer and promotor.

Participants, apart from the Netherlands champion team (PKC), included Belgium (Sikopi), Great Britain (Vultrix) and Germany (Adler Rauxel) as well as Spain (Marbella Juventud) and France (CLL Bourges) for the first time. It was an undoubted success, with PKC as the first tournament winner, followed by Sikopi in second place with an unexpected fourth place going to Spain behind Adler Rauxel. Vultrix was 5th and CLL Bourges in 6th place.

## Portugal (1988) and Poland (1989) join

The 21st tournament in the series was held in December 1986, for the first time in France (Bourges); because the Orleans club was French champion that year, the Bourges home team was unable to take part. Spain was unfortunately unable to send its champion team that year so that only five teams were left, of which ROHDA (NED) was the ultimate winner ahead of AKC of Belgium.

Spain reappeared on the list again for the tournament in Antwerp (BEL) in January 1988, however, and together with newly-admitted Portugal and its ISEF Agon Clube team it brought the total number of participating countries to seven (7). The Portuguese champions were surely not disappointed by their debut performance, ending in 5th place ahead of Marbella Juventud (ESP) and Orleans (FRA). Like in 1986 Adler Rauxel (GER) took third place in front of Mitcham (GBR). Oost Arnhem (NED) won the Cup and AKC (BEL) was second.

The number of competing countries rose again in January 1989 when the 23rd tournament – the 4th indoor – welcomed Poland to the field (admitted to IKF membership in 1988) with its team from Krakow. The CB Egara '85 team from Terrassa represented Spain's interests on this occasion and took 8th place having been very narrowly beaten by the Krakow team. Once again, Oost Arnhem (NED) won the Europa cup, followed in second place by AKC (BEL) with Adler Rauxel (GER) and ISEF Agon Clube (POR) in 3rd and 4th places respectively. The Portuguese were able to enjoy this position thanks to their 9–8 defeat of the British Mitcham team (after extra time), who were ultimately placed 5th ahead of CLL Bourges (FRA).

# Tournaments in Papendrecht (1990) and Lisbon (1991), now including Czechoslovakia

These tournaments were again organized with eight teams. In 1990 the Spanish champion team was not able to take part and its place was taken by KC Decin, the champions of recently (1989) affiliated Czechoslovakia, who again participated in 1991. In 1991 the Polish team of Krakow was replaced by the Spanish Egara '85 team.

The 1990 tournament brought Catbavrienden (BEL) and PKC (NED) to the final with host team PKC coming out on top for the second time in the indoor tournament series. The German team Adler Rauxel again took third place by beating Mitcham in the final round.

In the very well organized tournament in 1991 in Lisbon (POR), the 25th in the series, the final between Sikopi (BEL) and Fortuna (NED) was an exciting match. Sikopi was ahead 7–4 at half time, but Fortuna fought back to 9–9 and on to 11–11, but eventually lost the battle with a score of 14–15. Adler Rauxel again showed great spirit by taking third place for the sixth time in succession with its 18–17 win against the English club Vultrix.

# The period 1992–1995: Armenia, Luxemburg, Hungary and Slovakia enter their champion clubs; first round matches necessary.

As more and more European countries entered their champion clubs for participation in the tournament it became necessary to introduce first round matches to arrive at the maximum number of eight teams. For the 1992 tournament in Saint-Etienne (FRA) it was decided to grant automatic admittance to the champions of the first seven countries in the 1991 final ranking. Four (4) clubs played for the eighth place which went to KC Decin (CZE) which managed to stay in front of Armsikopi (ARM), AWF Warszawa (POL) and Ro'de Le'w (LUX).

During the main tournament the champions of Belgium (Catbavrienden) and The Netherlands (Deetos) balanced out completely. The final game which had the numerous spectators standing in their seats, ended in a 13–13 draw and after extra time the score was still level (18–18) so that only after a 5–4 penalty shoot-out Catbavrienden could call itself the new Europa Cup holder, the first time in the club's history. For the seventh time in seven tournaments Adler Rauxel (GER) came third and first time participants Sangalhos (POR) reached an excellent fourth place in the final ranking.

For the 8th tournament in Castrop–Rauxel (GER) only the numbers one to six of the final 1992 ranking were granted automatic admittance so that two places were available for the champions of Czecho–Slovakia, Armenia, Poland and newly admitted IKF member Hungary. VKC Kolín (CZE) and Armsikopi (ARM) qualified.

The final in Germany was a repetition of the previous year. Nearly 2,000 spectators saw an exciting match between Catbavrienden (BEL) and Deetos (NED) with this time the Dutch champions the 10–9 winners. German champion Grün-Weiss participated for the first time and repeated the success of rivals Adler Rauxel by beating Nomads (GBR) to gain third place in the final ranking. The two East European qualifiers did very well to beat their opponents from France and Portugal to finish in 5th and 6th place, thus gaining their countries the right to have their champion club participate in the 1994 tournament without first round matches.

For the 9th indoor tournament in Olomouc (CZE) no less than five clubs competed for the two places that were available for qualifiers. The two South European teams, Sangalhos (POR) and Egara '85 (ESP) left their opponents from France, Poland and Hungary behind but had to be content with 7th and 8th place in the main tournament.

Unlike previous years the 1994 final provided little excitement, Deetos (NED) beating their opponents Borgerhout KC (BEL) by no less than 20–7. German champions Grün-Weiss repeated their 1993 success by a 11–9 win over Vultrix (GBR) to gain third place.

The 10th tournament was held in Debrecen (HUN). Qualifiers were ISEF Agon Clube (POR) and Prievidza, the champions of recently affiliated Slovakia, through wins over their opponents from France and Poland. In a high quality final the cup went to Dutch champions ROHDA who beat their opponents Catbavrienden (BEL) by the very good score of 23–19. For the tenth time third place went to the German champions, Grün-Weiss beating Britain's Mitcham by no less than 22–10.

#### 1996 and 1997: Six clubs in final round

For the 11th tournament at the National Sports Centre in Crystal Palace (GBR) the formula was changed again. Only six clubs were allowed to compete in the final round to which only the champion clubs of the countries which provided the finalists of the previous year were admitted automatically. All other champion clubs were obliged to compete in first round matches.

The tournament provided less drama then in some of the previous editions. Dutch champions Deetos were supreme and their 22–14 win over Mercurius of Belgium made them the first club to win the coveted Alfons Janssens Trophy three times.

As so often in the past the match for third place was between the German and the British champions. Cheered on by a large and enthusiastic crowd Mitcham took revenge for last year's defeat by Grün-Weiss thus becoming the first non-German club to win the bronze medals.

In their all-Iberian encounter ISEF Agon Clube of Portugal beat Spanish champions St Llorenc KC – last minute stand-in for late withdrawals Armsikopi of Arménka – into sixth place.

The 12th tournament in Terrassa (ESP) was the first to be held in Spain and in addition to the Dutch and Belgian champions the home team of St Llorenc KC was also given the right to compete. The champions of the Czech Republic, Great Britain and Hungary who had been victorious in the first round, completed the sextet.

The final provided not only plenty of excitement but also some very good korfball. Catbavrienden (BEL) beat their rivals Oost Arnhem (NED) by the odd goal (20–19) and thus became the first Belgian team to win the trophy twice. For the first time the bronze medals went to a club from the Czech Republic. In their pool match against MAFC Budapest (HUN) VKC Kolín (CZE) had only just scraped through (16–15) but on the final day they gave SLKC – surprise winners over Croydon (GBR) – no chance: their 22–8 victory was thoroughly deserved.

A scoring spree in the last five minutes of their match against MAFC gave the British champions a 19–14 victory and thereby 5th place in the final ranking.

## From 1998: Back to eight teams in the finals.

Following the first IKF European Congress in Antwerp in November 1996 it was decided to admit eight teams to the final round of the 13th tournament which was to be held in Antwerp (BEL) on three consecutive days, from 2–4 January 1998. Only the champion clubs of the countries of the finalists of the previous year's tournament would be admitted automatically. However, PKC, the champion club of The Netherlands, declined the invitation to participate for religious reasons (the club did not wish to play on Sunday), and as the dates of the tournament could not be shifted and the KNKV refused to invite the runners up, the tournament went – for the first time in its 32 year old history! – without Dutch participation. It meant that seven teams could qualify in first round matches. Three of those came from Western and four from Central Europe.

The absence of the Dutch provided the tournament with more interesting matches on the first two days but the final day saw three clear-cut victories and only one close-fought match when Polish champions Biala Podlaska beat Prievidza of Slovakia 16–15. The match for 5th/6th place was between two first time participants, Havirov of the Czech Republic beating Clube de Corfebol de Oeiras of Portugal 17–10. Absent from the previous year's finals because of their failure to qualify, German champions Grün-Weiss staged a remarkable comeback by beating the surprisingly strong Hungarian champions MAFC 20–12 and thus finishing in third position.

In the final match of the tournament British champions Mitcham defended themselves heroically against the reigning European champions but in the end they could not prevent Catbavrienden from scoring a well-deserved 21–9 victory. Not only did Catbavrienden thereby keep the title but in the overall ranking they joined Deetos of The Netherlands at the top of the table with three IKF Europa Cup victories.

As most countries were unhappy with the absence of the Dutch champions the tournament was once again on the agenda of the second European Congress in Estoril (POR) in April 1998. It was decided that the finals would henceforth be held on the second full weekend of the year, not including New Year's Day, with matches from Thursday to Saturday unless the organising country wishes to play from Friday to Sunday for commercial or promotional reasons.

Since PKC had prolonged its Dutch championship the club could now participate in the 14th tournament. It had, of course, first to qualify in a first round but this proved no problem!

The finals were held in Prague as part of the celebrations on the occasion of the 10th anniversary of the Czech Korfball Association. The pool matches brought plenty of excitement but only one real surprise: the victory (by a "golden goal") by first time participants AWF Warszawa (POL) over Portuguese champions Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias (GDdBD). Cheered on by a large and enthusiastic home crowd VKC Kolín made a special effort to reach the final but Belgian champions AKC were equally determined and gave them no chance at all.

The final day brought less excitement than some of the previous editions of the Europa Cup. GDdBD and Grün-Weiss (GER) scored easy victories against resp. Prievidza (SVK) and Warszawa and in spite of the help from a full Slavia house Kolín lost the "little final" 10–12 against a cool and crafty Mitcham (GBR) side. The final match between AKC (BEL) and PKC (NED) did only occasionally bring world class korfball. When PKC were leading 5–0 after 15 minutes the game seemed to be over but AKC fought itself back into the match and at one time they were only one goal behind. However, PKC kept its head and went on to win 15–13 and so take possession of the cup they had last won nine years earlier.

The 15th tournament, hosted by the Europacup holders, was played according to the same formula. The pool matches produced no surprises but the final day with a PKC sports hall filled to capacity (1,750), brought plenty of excitement. After Warszawa (POL) had demonstrated its clear superiority over L'Autonoma (CAT), GDdBD of Portugal and Czech champions Kolín fought a real battle which in the end was won by the Portuguese by the narrowest of margins (18–17). Even closer was the game between eternal rivals Mitcham (GBR) and Adler Rauxel (GER). With a 19–19 final score a "golden goal" had to decide the winners of the bronze medals. After an agonising six minutes the "eagles" from Germany produced the winning goal, thus claiming the third spot which they had occupied on so many previous occasions. The final brought much more excitement than even the staunchest Sikopi fan had dared to predict. In front of its home crowd PKC was never allowed to relax and when Sikopi came within one goal from the home team the tension became almost unbearable. The cup holders stayed cool, however, and with a final effort managed to beat the Belgian champions 19–16. This 4th indoor cup win takes PKC to the top of the rankings.

For its 16<sup>th</sup> tournament the IKF went back to the Spanish town of Terrassa. With one exception the pool matches provided not much excitement, although few would have predicted a victory by home team St Llorenc over their Portuguese rivals Benfica and by AWF Warszawa (POL) over British champions Mitcham. The final game on the

second day brought at last the excitement of extra time. In spite of their "golden goal experience" the Poles did not score in their first attack and when the Germans did, it was all over for Warszawa.

The final day started with a close game between the Portuguese and the British champions, three times medal winners, but now very much weakened by the departure of some of their best players. To give their reserves some much needed international experience Mitcham fielded their second team and this lost by the odd goal to Benfica (10–11). Cheered on by a large crowd Sint Llorenc tried to keep pace with Warszawa but in the end the experience and the greater physique of the Poles prevailed (14–20). Havirov experienced once again that a German team is never beaten until the final whistle has gone. For the 13th time in 16 tournaments (the fifth time for Grün-Weiss) the German champions went home with the bronze medals (15–17).

The first half of the final between the Dutch and the Belgian champions was of a very high standard and the 11–11 half time score was a good reflection of both teams' possibilities. Halfway through the second half Die Haghe profited from some inaccurate shooting by AKC, went ahead and never allowed the reds to come close again. A 19–16 victory enabled Die Haghe to crown their first time appearance in the IKF Europa Cup with the Alfons Janssens Trophy.

Like three years earlier the 17th tournament was held in Prague, the capital of the Czech Republic. The pool matches finished more or less according to expectation, although Hungarian champions MAFC almost caused an upheaval in their match against Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias of Portugal. And who would have thought that British champions Mitcham, bronze medal winners in 1999, would go down against Prievidza of Slovakia?

On the final day Mitcham revenged itself to some extent by beating MAFC, while Germany's Grün-Weiss kept the Slovakian champions at bay. The bronze medal match between the Portuguese champions and the "home" team from Havirov was a real thriller. The Czech side dominated in the first half but after the interval Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias came back very strongly. The Czech champions just managed to hold on to their lead and when at 15–14 the final whistle went Havirov could celebrate their first win in a "little final".

Since PKC had seen two of the three Simons brothers depart to other clubs Belgian champions AKC started the final as favourites and at half-time they were indeed leading 10–8. They kept their lead until five minutes from the end but then the Dutch turned their 13–14 arrears into a 16–14 victory. A bitter disappointment for the reds from Antwerp who had hoped that their sixth appearance in a Europa Cup final would finally give them the coveted Alfons Janssens Trophy. However, it was not to be and through its victory PKC placed itself firmly at the head of the table with five wins in as many finals.

The 18th tournament was held in Belgium's korfball temple: the Arena hall in Antwerp (BEL). The greatest surprise during the pool matches came from Slovakian champions Prievidza. Victories over the traditionally stronger teams of Adler Rauxel (GER) and Benfica (POR) gave them a place in the "little final". By then, however, they had fired their last shot and a big loss against Invicta (GBR) was the result. The British had done very well in their pool by beating first time Czech champions Ceske Budejovice by the odd goal. Had the outstanding performance by the Czechs against Die Haghe (NED) on the previous day, when they kept step with the Dutch champions until well into the second half, perhaps cost them too much energy?

Before the final between Die Haghe and their eternal rivals from Belgium expectations ran high. Would the home team finally succeed where six previous attempts had failed? Cheered on by a record crowd AKC with its many internationals started as favourites but it was not to be. Although the result remained in doubt until the dying seconds Die Haghe kept its head cool and a 10–9 win gave the Dutch champions a second IKF Europa Cup victory.

The 19th tournament in 2004 was planned to be held in Papendrecht (NED) but a late withdrawal by PKC forced the KNKV and IKF to look for an alternative venue. This was found in Delft (NED) where Dutch champion club Fortuna/Tempus was prepared to organise the event. They did a very good job.

The pool matches produced two very close results: Czech champions Ceske Budejovice only beat L'Autonoma (CAT) on penalties after a 11–11 draw in regular time and a goalless "golden goal" period; Invicta (GBR) and eternal rivals Adler Rauxel (GER) also drew their match (15–15) but here Invicta managed to score the "golden goal".

In the match for third place Ceske Budejovice showed that mrs Corinne Buckland and her Invicta team were not invincible. The Czechs scored a regular 16–14 victory.

In the final it looked as though Belgian champions AKC/Café Bar's eighth attempt to win the Alfons Janssens Trophy would finally be successful. The team soon led 7–3 but then production stopped. Fortuna/Tempus scored six (6) goals in a row but AKC/Café Bar came back and at the end of regular time scores were level at 10–10. After six (6) nerve-racking minutes of extra time with good scoring chances for either side it was recent IKF World

Championship's best female player Heleen van der Wilt who scored the "golden goal" that gave Fortuna/Tempus its first ever IKF Europa Cup.

## In 2005; the 20th indoor IKF Europa Cup tournament; now including Russia.

For the 20th tournament in 2005 the IKF went back to Saint-Etienne (FRA), but the event turned out to be much less exciting than the tournament held in the same venue 13 years earlier when the final was decided after extra time and a penalty shoot-out. The event was, however, marked by the first ever appearance by a club team from Russia: Oryol STU who had left Prievidza (SVK) and Warszawa (POL) behind them in the first round.

The pool matches provided only one surprise, Benfica (POR) beating last year's bronze medal winners Ceske Budejovice. This was no fluke result as the Benfica team kept the Czechs scoreless for the first 17 minutes, whilst opening up a five goal lead which they held until the end. Oryol STU lost its three pool matches but interestingly enough won the second half of all three matches!

The final day did not bring the usual close-fought matches and certainly did not have the spectators standing in their seats like in 1992. Even the bronze medal match provided little excitement. It was dominated by the Portuguese champions Benfica who scored eight times without reply by Mitcham (GBR) between the 5th and 25th minutes and finally won by a ten goal margin. The final was won by the same margin by Dutch champions Fortuna/Tempus. The match was a repeat of the 2004 final when the game went into extra time. But with AKC/Café Bar losing so many of the previous year's team they were unable to match the skills and the high scoring potential of their opponents. With a 24–14 final score Fortuna/Tempus took the IKF Europa Cup back to Delft.

The 21st tournament was for the first time held in the Republic of Slovakia, in Prievidza, the home town of the Slovakian champions. Second time participants Oryol STU from Russia almost caused a sensation: minutes from the end of their pool match against Belgian champions Riviera they were level at 13–13. Then, however, the Belgians scored their 14th goal and the Russians knew they were beaten. Oryol STU went on to play German champions Adler Rauxel, celebrating 30 years in the Europa Cup, for 3rd place. After a 9–8 half-time score the Russians took the bronze medals (their first medals in an official IKF event) with a 21–12 victory.

Last year's bronze medal winners Benfica ended this year in 7th place just ahead of the home team whom they beat 15–13 in their final match. However, after the tournament it was found that one of the Benfica players was ineligible to play in the event. The IKF then decided that Benfica should be placed 8th and last in the tournament.

Dutch champions PKC/Café Bar cruised easily through their pool matches. In the first half of the final Riviera offered some resistance but during the second 30 minutes PKC ran away and with a 20–9 victory they won the Alfons Janssens Trophy for the sixth time.

For the 22<sup>nd</sup> tournament in 2007 the IKF went to Antwerp. The rules were changed very slightly in that draws would be allowed in the pool matches so that "golden goal" periods would not be necessary. In the event of two teams finishing level the goal average - used as an experiment instead of goal difference - would decide their ranking.

In pool A home team Riviera topped the group as expected but the unfancied Szentendre team from Hungary caused a surprise by beating the more experienced clubs from Germany and England to finish second, the first time a Hungarian team managed to reach this position in the Europa Cup. Mitcham and Grün-Weiss drew their match 11 - 11. The Germans with a superior goal average thereby earned the right to play for 5th place.

In pool B Dutch champions DOS'46 were far too strong for the other teams. Ceske Budejovice found some of the form that that deserted them in the qualification round (where they had qualified in second place behind Szentendre) and beat both the Portuguese and the Russians. Orel STU was much weaker this year after losing three players in the close season to Belgian rivals Riviera and finished 4th in the group.

The 7th place match between Mitcham and Orel STU was won by the Russians. Mitcham thus finished in 8th place, the lowest position for a British club since 2001. After an even first half CC Oeiras gained the initiative at the beginning of the second period and held firm to score a comfortable victory against the German champions. The bronze medal game was a re-match of the qualification round game between Ceske Budejovice and Szentendre. The Czechs gained their revenge by virtue of some excellent middle to long distance shooting in the first half and although the Hungarians won the second period the result was never really in doubt.

The final was decided in the opening ten minutes as DOS '46 scored eight goals without reply against Riviera. The game then became more even but the damage had been done and DOS '46 won the gold in their first ever final since the event became an indoor championship in 1985 (DOS '46 won the outdoor version in 1982).

## In 2008 Greece, Italy and Scotland participate.

The 23rd tournament in 2008 welcomed the champion clubs of first time participants Greece, Italy and Scotland. They did not, however, progress beyond the qualification round. Despite qualifying Russian champions Orel STU withdrew for financial reasons from the final stage of the tournament in Carcavelos near Lisbon (POR). They were replaced by Szentendre from Hungary. The Golden Goal rule was reinstated.

Boeckenberg (BEL), playing in the modern version of the IKF Europa Cup for the first time (having last competed over 30 years ago in the outdoor version of the event), were the easy winners in pool A. A golden goal (the first time they led in the match!) decided the game for second place in favour of Mitcham against hosts Benfica. Earlier another golden goal had brought victory to the Portuguese against Hungarian champions Szentendre.

As expected Pool B was dominated by the Europacup holders DOS '46 from the Netherlands. One of the first games in this group saw two former bronze winners - Ceske Budejovice (CZE) and Adler Rauxel (GER) - pitted against each other. Although the Germans were four goals down at half time they managed to turn the game around to win by the smallest of margins (13-12). Adler repeated this feat in their match against Slovakian champions Prievidza. Three goals down half way through the second half they hit back to win 21-19 and thus go through to the bronze medal match. The game between Eastern European rivals Ceske Budejovice (CZE) and Prievidza (SVK) was again very close, the Czechs winning 13-11.

On the final day Prievidza was obviously affected by its disappointment at letting the Germans off the hook the evening before so that Szentendre gained an easy 21-11 revenge for their defeat in the qualification event. Thereafter hosts Benfica took on Ceske Budejovice for fifth place. Last year's bronze medals winners from the Czech Republic put on a disappointing performance enabling the home team to score a fairly easy 21-14 victory.

Mitcham won the bronze with an 11-8 win over Castrop Rauxel, the first time in four occasions in the history of the event that Mitcham got the better of Adler Rauxel in a bronze medal match in a rivalry going back over 20 years.

In the early part of the final between DOS'46 and Boeckenberg scoring was difficult for both teams as both defences were playing well and forcing errors from their opponents. Half time score 5-5. The second half, however, was a different story. DOS'46 suddenly found their scoring touch and the game was virtually over in the first ten minutes of the half as they scored six times with Boeckenberg only replying once from the penalty spot. The Dutch long and medium distance shooting was deadly throughout the half. Boeckenberg reduced the deficit a little by scoring five in the last five minutes but the Dutch retained the trophy with a 19-12 victory.

## The 2009 IKF Europa Cup; high level korfball and many exciting matches.

The 24th tournament in 2009 was marked by the participation of the champion clubs of yet another two new korfball countries: Serbia and Wales; both did well by avoiding last place in their qualification round. The champions of Russia, Portugal, Hungary and the Czech Republic assured their qualification for the main tournament, but the first two did so only on goal difference!

The main tournament had been awarded to the Royal Dutch Korfball Association (KNKV) who in turn asked first time Dutch champions Koog Zaandijk to take care of the organisation. For the first time the tournament was held over 4 days – Wednesday till Saturday - so that teams would never have to play 2 matches on 1 day.

The pool matches brought no surprises with the champions of the Low Countries Koog Zaandijk and Boeckenberg KC as the clear winners. The fact that the English and German champions lost all of their three pool matches is perhaps significant for the progress of korfball in Europe!

On the final day hosts Koog Zaandijk beat Boeckenberg (BEL) 22 - 18 in one of the best IKF Europa Cup finals in recent years. The sportshall was completely sold out. The Europa Cup final was live on Dutch Tv with on average 375,000 viewers. The Belgians had the better of the match for much of the first half but honours were even at half time (11-11). However, in the opening 6 minutes of the second half Koog Zaandijk took control by opening a three goal lead and although the Belgians fought back to narrow the lead to one midway through the half, the Dutch champions pulled away again to become IKF Europa Cup champions in their debut in the event.

The match for the bronze medal proved to be a tense thriller. CC de Oeiras (POR) just edged the first half against TJ Znojmo (CZE) 8-7. At the start of the second half they increased the lead to 9-7 but then went 15 minutes without scoring. This let the Czechs back into the match and with 10 minutes left the scores were level. Many chances were missed by both teams and despite twice taking the lead in the closing minutes CC de Oeiras found themselves pegged back to end normal time 12-12. In the golden goal extra time both teams were very nervous

and many clear chances were missed by both teams. It seemed like a penalty shoot out beckoned but, with just three minutes left, CC de Oeiras' captain Alexandra Silva scored with a long shot to earn the Portuguese the bronze medal.

Fifth place was clinched by Szentendre KK (HUN) who surprisingly beat Orel STU (RUS). The Hungarians built up a four goal lead in the opening 15 minutes and held off Orel's comeback to lead 8-6 at half time. The Russians scored first in the second half but Szentendre KK then took control until the last few minutes when Orel started to eat into Szentendre's four goal lead. However, time was against them and the Hungarians scored a well deserved 16-15 victory.

Adler Rauxel (GER) took 7th place with a 14-13 win over Trojans (ENG). The English team, playing in their first IKF Europa Cup, let their opponents gain too much of a lead before fighting back. In both halves the Germans built a four goal lead and in the end this was decisive.

## 25th IKF Europa Cup 2010; the next winner of the Alfons Janssens Cup is?

With 13 European Champion Club teams participating, following the first round tournaments in Kocaeli (Turkey) and Trebon (Czech Republic), the eight contestants for the 25th Europa Cup tournament, in Herentals, Belgium, were found. From the tournament in Kocaeli, teams from both Germany and England qualified, while in Trebon, clubs from Russia, Hungary and the Czech Republic qualified. Clubs from the Netherlands, Belgium and Portugal had already qualified based on their country's performances in last year's finals.

The first game in Herentals saw Trojans from England take on Szentendre KK from Hungary for seventh and eighth place. The game started tensely with the first goal coming after five minutes from Trojans. By half time Trojans had managed to push the score up to 11-6 and then increased their lead to 17-10. However, Szentendre KK applied the pressure and notched up five goals without reply, setting up an exciting finale to the game. At 17-15 with four minutes to go it looked close, but Trojans scored three goals in quick succession giving them seventh place. Final score 20-15.

Playing off for fifth and sixth places were CC de Oeiras from Portugal and Ceske Budejovice from the Czech Republic. This was a tight match, and ten minutes into the second half the score was level at 16-16. However, Ceske Budejovice stepped up a gear and proceeded to score six goals without reply, taking the lead 22-16 with ten minutes left to play. Despite both teams making substitutions in the final minutes, the difference remained at six goals and so Ceske Budejovice took fifth place. The final score was 25-19, including an impressive six goals scored from open play by Jakub Blaha.

Contesting third and fourth positions were Adler Rauxel of Germany and Orel STU from Russia. The game was even, with the defence very strong on either side and the half time score level at 4-4. The second half was equally close, however with five minutes left, Orel STU took the lead at 12-11. Adler Rauxel then scored a long shot leveling the score once more. As a golden goal period loomed, Adler Rauxel earned a penalty, and with only 12 seconds left, substitute Johannes Langer converted to bring the score to 13-12. Orel STU was unable to find the equaliser and Adler Rauxel kept this slender advantage to win the bronze medal.

For the final game, spectators at the BLOSO Sports Centre as well as television viewers were treated to a some superb high-level korfball from Dutch team DOS'46/Engeldot and Belgian team Boeckenberg KC. The game saw korfball stars Mirjam de Kleyn, Sabrina Bijvank, Andre Kuipers and Casper Boom in action and they didn't fail to disappoint as DOS'46/Engeldot won their third IKF Europa Cup in four years. The match ended 27 – 20.

## IKF Europa Cup 2011; the final round returns to Hungary

With 10 European Champion Club teams participating, following the first round tournament in Wroclaw (Poland), the eight contestants for the 26th IKF Europa Cup tournament, in Budapest, Hungary, were found. From the tournament in Wroclaw, teams from Catalonia, Czech Republic, Portugal, Germany and England qualified. Clubs from the Netherlands, Belgium had already qualified based on their country's performances in last year's finals. The club from the host country had already qualified as well.

All matches could be followed live over the Internet. The organisers installed a good quality webcamera in the sportshall. Many thousands watched the IKF Europa Cup matches live. In combination with the online scoring software from the IKF this solution showed that a multi media approach is the trend as of now in this event as well.

Top scorer in the whole event was Jakub BLAHA (Ceske Budejovice) with 28, nine of which were scored in the bronze medal match against Trojans. Alexandra FRIAS (CC Oeiras) was the female top scorer with 17 goals.

The Iberian Peninsula battle to avoid the wooden spoon saw CC Oeiras (POR) beat Vacarisses (CAT) 19 – 15.

In the game for 5<sup>th</sup> place, Hungary's Szentendre club beat last year's bronze medallists – Adler Rauxel (GER) with a surprising 11 goal margin (23 – 12). Excellent shooting from the Hungarian team made the difference. The Germans were overpowered especially in the first half.

In the game for the bronze medal, underdogs Trojans (ENG), who were the lowest placed qualifying team for the final round, almost surprised Ceske Budejovice (CZE) but let a two goal lead slip to a three goal deficit. Although they managed to get back on equal terms the effort took a lot out of them and they conceded the winning goal just two minutes from the end. Final score 19 – 18 to the Czechs.

Dutch champions Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex beat Royal Scaldis (BEL) in a record goal scoring IKF Europa Cup final. No fewer than 56 goals were scored in the match with exactly an average of one a minute in the second half with both teams scoring 15 each. The final score was 33 – 23. Bart Cleyman (Royal Scaldis) and Tim Bakker (KZ) top scored with 10 each. The game was also notable for the number of penalties (17) all bar one of which was converted with winners Koog Zaandijk scoring 9 and Scaldis 7 out of their 8 chances.

This event made clear that the differences after the top teams are very small. You can reach 3rd place or 7th/8th place. The matches in poolphase are decided on a few points and the difference between a win or a loss has great impact on the final ranking in the event. This is a good development. This might encourage these teams to bridge the gap with the top teams as well. An increase in the level of play is urged by heavy competition and regular matches under pressure.

## IKF Europa Cup 2012; the final for the first time in Poland

This event underlined the ongoing development of European korfball. For the first time in korfball history the 46th IKF Europa Cup final round was played with 12 teams over in total 5 days.

Ten teams qualified for the final round based on the 2011 IKF Europa Cup. A first round was organised in Prievidza (SVK). Six teams participated. The first two teams qualified directly for the final round in Warsaw (POL): SKK Prievidza Dolphins (SVK) and Bonson FJEP (FRA). Due to the withdrawal of the Hungarian champion – Szentendre – the IKF Competition Committee invited the first round number 3: Ankara University Sports Club (Turkey). They accepted and it was the first Turkish appearance in an IKF Europa Cup final round.

The first event day in Warsaw 4 matches were programmed. These matches were decisive. The winners reach a top 8 ranking. The losers will be contesting the places 9 to 12.

The first match between Assessoria Valparadis (CAT) and SKK Dolphins Prievidza (SVK) showed great commitment. The Catalonians were always on the right side of the score. They finished with a 19-15 victory. In the next match NC Benfica (POR) did what was expected, they beat FJEP Bonson (FRA) by 36-6 after 20-2 half time. First time participant Ankara University Club (TUR) showed a lot of enthusiasm and energy in their match against Trojans (ENG). But the more experienced English team stayed calm and created the opportunities to win 19-10. The day ended with the match between the hosting club Megasports Warsawa (POL) and Orel State University HSS (RUS). It was a match with 2 different tactical concepts, Orel State University HSS focused on the long distance shot and Megasports Warsawa more playing from and in the post area. The Russians achieved a well-deserved win; 18-27 after a 7-12 score at halftime.

Thre first match on the second day of the event was an attractive match SKK Dolphins Prievidza (SVK) gained victory over Ankara University Club (TUR). The difference was made after halftime (9-9) by playing more collective than their opponents, final score 18-14. After that Megasports Warsawa (POL) showed FJEP Bonson (FRA) their greater experience in international matches by winning 26-8. Assessoria Valparadis (CAT) and TOP/Wereldtickets.nl (NED) played an equal match till the first time out of Dutch coach, Hans Heemskerk. From this moment on it was clear TOP/Wereldtickets.nl aim was to win and they did with a score of 40-14. In a straight match Boeckenberg KC (BEL) won against State University HSS (RUS), 34-12. The Russians missed the good distance shots they had in their match Tuesday. On the other hand the Belgians scored from all positions, some of

them after beautiful combinations. The players entertained the audience as also the Belgian supporters entertained everyone in the sports hall.

The semi finals day started with a match between VKC Kolin (CZE) and NC Benfica (POR). There was a lot of tension and emotion. The first score was for VKC Kolin but from that moment on they had to try to stay in line with the score of the Portuguese team. The importance of the match also resulted in two yellow cards for players of VKC Kolin. Decisive was the penalty given to NC Benfica at the score of 16-17. At the end 16-19 was on the score board for NC Benfica. Adler Rauxel (GER) took the lead against Trojans (5-1), but the Englishmen fought back and had a positive score of 9-11 half time. In an attractive second half the Germans equalised at 16-16, but also missed two penalties. Final score was 20-22 in favour of Trojans

The semi final day started with the match between Ankara University Club and FJEP Bonson. Because of the final score of 16-11 Ankara University club ends at the 11th place and FJEP Bonson is the number 12 in 2012. The importancy of the match between SKK Dolphins Prievidza and Megasports Warsawa was the winning team gained a direct entrance for IKF Europa Cup 2013 for their country. The Slovakians took the lead in the first half (9-6 half time), but the Polish team fought back in the second half. They scored eleven goals against just 4 by SKK Dolphins Prievidza, final score 13-17. This results in a 9th rank for Megasports Warsawa and the 10th place for SKK Dolphins Prievidza. In the first half of their match State University HSS could stay close to VKC Kolin. After a halftime score of 12-10 in favour of the Czech they showed they still belong to the top of Europe (24-16) and they will battle for the fifth place on finals day. Although Assessoria Valparadis was the whole match in the lead against Adler Rauxel it was an attractive match for the spectators. Indicative for the battle was that 4 of the first 6 scores of Assessoria Valparadis were penalty goals. At the end the scoreboard showed a final score of 20-17.

In the first semi final Boeckenberg KC showed their technical superiority. In a match with high speed NC Benfica used a lot of energy in the first half, this effected in a 6-7 score after 18 minutes (half time was 10-18). Boeckenberg KC geared up in the second half. Regarding this match the expectations on Boeckenberg KC in the final are high (final score 15-34).

In the second semi final Daniel Harmzen (TOP/Wereldtickets.nl) reigned in the post area and provided his teammates having many shot opportunities. Trojans did their utmost but that was not enough to beat the Dutch. (33-18).

TOP/Wereldtickets.nl, Dutch national champion 2011, became the winner of the 46th IKF Europa Cup. TOP/Wereldtickets.nl did beat their opponents from Boeckenberg KC in an exciting final - 19 -22 - in front of an enthusiastic crowd of mainly TOP and Boeckenberg supporters in Warsaw, Poland. The referee was Steve Jones from Wales.

## IKF Europa Cup 2013; Budapest was again the city for the finals

For the second time in korfball history the 47th IKF Europa Cup final round was played with 12 teams. The competition took place over 4 days; from Wednesday till Saturday. Live webcasting organised by the IKF of the event took place on the ikfchannel on YouTube for the 2nd time. It attracted many thousands of spectators from in total 37 countries all over the world. It underlined the growing importance of social media as well.

Ten club teams qualified for the final round based on the 2012 IKF Europa Cup ranking; The Netherlands, Belgium, England, Portugal, Catalonia, Czech Republic, Germany, Russia, Poland and Slovakia. A first round was organised in September 2012 in Montrond-Les-Bains (FRA). Five teams participated; Cardiff City (WAL), Sint Andrews University (SCO), Beograd Korfball Club (SRB), Nazilli Belediyesi (TUR) and FJEP Bonson (FRA). The first two teams qualified directly for the final round 2013: FJEP Bonson (FRA) in 1st place and Beograd Korfball Club (SRB) 2nd place. Beograd Korfball Club did beat Nazilli Belediyesi (TUR) on scoring difference only.

The first event day in Budapest 4 matches were programmed. These matches were decisive. The winners reach a top 8 ranking. The losers will be contesting the places 9 to 12.

The results did confirm the IKF Ranking, but the match between Szentendre KK (HUN) and Orel STU State University HSS (RUS) was very close and very intense. Szentendre KK was in the lead most of the match time of 60 minutes. The biggest difference was 11-3. At half time the score was 15-7 in favor of the Hungarian team. In the 56th minute the Russian champion equalised for the 1st time; 20-20. The Russian topscorer Dmitry Petrukhin made the difference with 2 goals at that point; in total he scored 9 goals in this match. In the Hungarian team Tamas Dzsida reached 10 goals in this match!

The second day had in total 6 matches on the schedule. It showed 2 very close matches. Both matches were exciting till the final whistle; Mega Sports Warsawa (POL) did beat Beograd Korfball Club (SRB) by 1; 18-17. And Trojans (ENG) did loose by 1 from Ceske Budejovice (CZE); 15-16. A missed penalty at 11-9 by Trojans captain David Brooks gave the Czech team first the opportunity to equalise and to take the lead as well; 11-12. As of that moment it was unpredictable which team would win. At 15-15 a golden goal was expected already when Vlastimil Krecjci scored the decisive winner; 15-16. The Belgian and the Dutch champions had expected wins over their opponents.

Day 3 had another 6 matches programmed. The match Mega Sports Warsawa - Szentendre KK would decide on the ranking for the places 9 and 10 and Beograd Korfball Club – FJEP Bonson (FRA) 11 and 12. Important to mention is that the 9th place gives the country direct entrance to the IKF Europa Cup Final 2014. The Hungarian champion did beat there opponents (20-24) and were ranked 9th. The 11/12 place match showed an unexpected golden goal situation. FJEP Bonson were in the lead nearby the whole match. At half time it was 7-12 in their favor. Only 2 minutes before the end the French team had a 3 point lead (14-17). Beograd Korfball Club managed to equalise (17-17) just some seconds before the end and achieving the golden goal. In the maximum 10 minute extension it was the Mionika Zanova with her 4th goal that gave Beograd Korfball Club the victory.

The match between Trojans and Schweriner KC e.V 67 from Germany was more than just close. It had everything that makes sport attractive. Changing chances, excitement, misses and beautiful goals. It was close during all 60 minutes. At half time it was 11-11 and after the final whistle of Belgian referee Miguel Wensma the scoreboard showed 18-17 in favor of Trojans. English captain David Brooks was topscorer with 7 goals.

The Russian Champions, Orel OSTU / State University HSS outperformed CE Vilanova i la Geltru (CAT) in the last 20 minutes. The scoreboard showed 17-16 at that moment for the Russian team. Ten minutes later and despite 2 Catalan time it was 23-17. The scoring abilities of the Russian players were better than there opponents; all 8 players in the team scored between 1 and 9 goals (topscorer Dmitry Kazachkov). Endscore 28-21.

Ceske Budejovice (CZE) could not at all compete with Boeckenberg KC (BEL). After 11 minutes the score was 0-8 and then they scored first. At half time the score was 9-17. The Belgians could save energy for the big final. They did their job in the 2nd half and made some replacements as well. After 60 minutes the score was 19-39 and Boeckenberg KC in the IKF Europa Cup final again.

In the other semi final match Koog Zandijk/Hiltex (NED) against NC Benfica (POR) the Dutch had a flying start as well. After 12 minutes it was 9-2 and the depth in quality of their squad could not be better shown than 5 Dutch international players on the bench. The scoring machine worked very well; 21-8 at half time. In the second half the Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex team was a little bit less accurate. They made some beautiful goals and extended their lead over their Portuguese rivals till 33-14 at the end.

The Saturday is finals day in the IKF Europa Cup system. Four matches are on the schedule. Schweriner KC e.V 67 versus CE Vilanova i la Geltru played in the first match to decide for the place 7 and 8. All eight German players did score and maybe this was decisive in the 1 goal win over the Catalans; 17-16. How close it was is shown in the score at half time 7-8 for CE Vilanova i la Geltru.

The second match was not close at all. Orel OSTU / State University HSS was too good for Trojans. The Russians played their best match of the event and Trojans seemed tired. At half time the match was decided already; 20-7. In the second half the Russian scoring machine continued. In the end it was 34-16. Dmitry Petrukhin was the topscorer with 11 goals. In the Trojans squad Neala Brennan was most successful with 6 goals.

The bronze medal match between Ceske Budejovice and NC Benfica was equal in the first 20 minutes. In the last 10 minutes of first half NC Benfica managed to take a 5 goal lead; 8-13. In the second half the Portuguese team could build on that lead and even extend it. When the scoreboard showed 18-27 NC Benfica team and staff could start their celebrations for the bronze medal.

The IKF Europa Cup final 2013 brought the eternal rivals from the Netherlands, Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex, and Belgium, Boeckenberg KC, on the pitch with Paul Jeanes (ENG) as the referee and many Hungarians, the other teams and around 200 supporters from both teams in the stadium. It was a match with two faces. In the 1st half Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex was in the lead. They played very effective and their defenders did great work. The 6-13 result after 30 minutes was the correct reflection. In the 2nd half the match continued and with another 20 minutes to go the score was 10-17. The Belgians did not accept their defeat and the Dutch seemed to become inaccurate. They could not keep the 7 goal lead. Still in the 51th minute it was 15-20 and nothing to worry for the Dutch team but they became nervous as well and could not score anymore. Boeckenberg KC came closer and closer and after 60 minutes the scoreboard showed 18-20. Disappointment with the Boeckenberg KC team and relief for IKF Europa Cup 2013 winner Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex. It was there third title in three appearances; 2009, 2011 and 2013.

## IKF Europa Cup 2014; Papendrecht is the city for the 48th finals

From Wednesday 15 till Saturday 18 January 2014 in Papendrecht, The Netherlands, in the PKC venues 12 teams competed for the IKF Europa Cup 2014.

This IKF Europa Cup has the official title; IKF Europa Cup sponsored by ELSCO.

ELSCO is the name sponsor for this event.

#### The pools:

POOL			
Α	PKC/Hagero (NED)	SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e.V. (GER)	1908 SZAC KSE (HUN)
В	Boeckenberg K.C. (BEL)	KC Barcelona (CAT)	KC Zemun (SRB)
С	NC Benfica (POR)	Trojans KC (ENG)	Edinburgh City KC (SCO)
D	VKC Kolin (CZE)	State University-HSS (RUS)	FJEP Bonson (FRA)

First time participants in 2014 are the clubs: SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e.V. (GER), Korfball Club Barcelona (CAT), 1908 SZAC KSE (HUN), Korfball Club Zemun (SRB), Edinburgh City Korfball Club (SCO).

The 48th IKF Europa Cup did set a new standard due to the organisers and the great venues of PKC/Hagero in Papendrecht. The spectators did watch a number of great, exciting matches over four days.

All matches were recorded and shown live on the Internet via the ikfchannel on YouTube. Over four days the IKF registered around 45,000 unique viewers.

The IKF Europa Cup final was one of the best in history. The home team of PKC/Hagero against Boeckenberg K.C. was a historic match of topkorfball. The PKC venue was sold out and over 1,700 spectators created a great atmosphere. The players became even more inspired and showed their utmost. Boeckenberg had the first goals and they were 0 - 4 in the lead after 4 minutes. PKC/Hagero had to chase the opponents. Only at 12 – 12 they scored the first equaliser. At half time PKC/Hagero was 16 – 15 in the lead. In the second half the Dutch champion had to work hard to stay in the lead. The individual qualities made the difference in favor of PKC/Hagero. At Belgian side Jesse de Bremaker scored 11 goals! The Dutch topscorer was Laurens Leeuwenhoek with 8. The Dutch captain, former Dutch international Mady Tims showed with 5 goals her great value for her team. The referee in the final, Lukas Filip (CZE), did a great job. He was fully in control and nearby invisible. The thrilling match ended with a record score in the Europa Cup history since 1967. PKC /Hagero was the winner; 31 – 27 and they earned their 7th IKF Europa Cup in this long Europa Cup history.

The bronze medal match was not close. NC Benfica took the initiative and the Czech team, VKC Kolin, could not follow. After 2 \* 25 minutes real playing time the score board showed 24 -10 and the Portuguese team earned the bronze medal. All results and the final ranking are enclosed in Appendix VI in this booklet as well.

# IKF Europa Cup 2015; the 49th final round was played in Tielen and Herentals, Belgium

From Wednesday 14 till Saturday 17 January 2014 ten teams competed to become the IKF Europa Cup winner in 2015. The teams from Russia and Wales withdrew from competition unfortunately.

#### The 10 participants were:

TOP/Quoratio (NED)	Schweriner KC (GER)
Royal Scaldis SC (BEL)	Trojans KC (ENG)
NC Benfica (POR)	Kocaeli University Sport Club (TUR)
Korfbal Club Brno (CZE)	FJEP Bonson (FRA)
Korfbal Assesoría Vallparadís (CAT)	Edinburgh Mavericks (SCO)

The Edinburgh Mavericks (SCO) and Korfball Club Brno (CZE) were first time participants in the IKF Europa Cup final round.

Brno did very well to achieve the bronze medal match. They had to compete the experienced team of NC Benfica in that match. The team from Portugal showed their experience in that match and earned a well deserved bronze medal again.

The 49th IKF Europa Cup final between TOP/Quoratio (NED) and Royal Scaldis (BEL) showed a close match in the first half till 6-7. As of that moment TOP/Quoratio scored 7 goals in a row without 1 goal from the Scaldis squad. As of that moment the Dutch played with a lot of confidence and showed beautiful play and goals. The excitement in the match was not very high. TOP/Quoratio extended he gap on the scoreboard and after 50 minutes real playing time the scoreboard showed 17-31. Dutch international Mick Snel (TOP/Quoratio) was the topscorer in the IKF ECup final with 8 goals. Immediately followed by David Peeters (BEL) and Nick Pikaar (NED) with 7 goals each.

TOP/Quoratio won their second IKF Europa Cup to bring home to Sassenheim.

During the four days of Europa Cup korfball a number of close matches were competed. Trojans (ENG) took part in three very close matches. They lost two with 1 goal difference amongst them the match for place 5 and 6 against Vallparadis (CAT). Trojans won one match with 1 goal difference against the German club Schweriner.

After the eternal rivals from the Netherlands and Belgium there are 4 / 5 clubs in competition for the places 3 till 8. The question is; can they bridge the gap with the top teams? And when?

All matches were live recorded and shown on the ikfchannel on YouTube. In total we had more than 20,000 unique visitors during the four event days.

## IKF Europa Cup 2016; Budapest was the place to be for the 50th finals

From Wednesday 13 till Saturday 16 January 2016 12 teams competed in the IKF Europa Cup in the jubilee version in 2016 in Budapest, Hungary. For the 50th time the IKF has organised the IKF Europa Cup event.

After the first round, a qualification event, of the IKF Europa Cup 26 and 27 September 2015 the 12 participating teams were known:

BELGIUM Boeckenberg Korfbal Club
CATALONIA Club Korfbal Vallparadís

CZECH REPUBLIC Korfbal Klub Brno
ENGLAND Trojans Korfball Club

FRANCE FJEP Bonson

GERMANY SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e. V.

HUNGARY Szentendrei Korfbal Klub

NETHERLANDS PKC/SWK Groep

POLAND UKK WUM Warszawa

PORTUGAL Nucleo de Corfebol de Benfica
TURKEY Marmara University Sport Club

Unfortunately the Russian champion withdrew from competition. Too late to organise another champion. The team from 1908 SZAC KSE played out of competition in the event to fill the open place.

The IKF Europa Cup has the longest event history and is after half a century still alive and most respected by the national club team champions and the over 30 IKF Europe members.

The Hungarian Korfball Association (HKA) organized a very good event again. The competing teams showed their abilities and after the pool matches the strongest four showed up; Boeckenberg KC, NC Benfica, KK Brno and PKC/SWK Groep. The bronze medal match was a replay of the bronze medal match in 2015; Brno versus Benfica. The first half was full of tension and excitement. At half time the score was 7-8 for the Portuguese team Benfica. In the second half Benfica showed their supremacy over the Czech squad and they widened the gap by regular scoring. After the final whistle Benfica earned the bronze medal again by a 14-22 win over Brno.

The IKF Europa Cup final between Boeckenberg and PKC/SWK Groep started with very high level korfball as of the first minute. Lukas Filip, CZE, was the referee in the final. Guided by Nick Janssens the Belgian team took the lead. At 4-6 Janssens had scored 4 goals already. After 18 minutes PKC equalized the score at 9-9. The scoring continued and after 25 minutes – half time – the scoreboard showed 16-12. Twenty eight goals in only 25 minutes real playing time; topkorfball in optima forma.

In the second half the Dutch team with Ben Crum in his last year as active topkorfball coach did continue in the same mood; high level korfball and scoring divided over all 8 players. After 35 minutes the gap was extended to 7 goals and the Belgians started to realize this match would not bring them the IKF Europa Cup. The final score after 50 minutes real playing time was 31-21. Topscorer in the final was Jesse de Bremaeker, Boeckenberg, with 8. Immediately followed by Richard Kunst and Laurens Leeuwenhoek, both PKC, each with 7 goals. Nick Janssens ended with 6 goals behind his name.

The 50th IKF Europa Cup is in the possession of PKC/SWK Groep. This gives PKC a record breaking number of 8 Cups over the last 30 years.

All matches were recorded and distributed live through worldkorfball.org, the ikfchannel on YouTube and the IWGA channel. Further we used the social media as Facebook to promote korfball.

## IKF Europa Cup 2017; Sassenheim, Netherlands was playing field

From Thursday 12 till Saturday 14 January 2017 ten (10) club teams competed three (3) days to become the 51st IKF Europa Cup winner in 2017.

After the first round qualification event of the IKF Europa Cup 24 and 25 September 2015 in Cardiff, Wales the 10 qualified teams were known. They were drawn in two pools. Due to late withdrawal of the Polish champion, UKK WUM Warszawa, the organisers were unable to to invite / organise another team. We were very happy a regional Dutch team played out of competition in the event to fill the open, tenth place

#### POOL A

CATALONIA Club Korfbal Vallparadís

CZECH REPUBLIC Korfbal Klub Brno
HUNGARY Szentendrei KK
NETHERLANDS TOP/Quoratio

TURKEY Kocaeli University Sport Club

POOL B

BELGIUM Boeckenberg KC
ENGLAND Trojans Korfball Club
GERMANY KV Adler Rauxel

PORTUGAL Nùcleo de Corfebol de Benfica

Eight games were played on the first day of the IKF Europa Cup 2017. No surprises between the winners, but the atmosphere in the TOP venue was very good already. The Organising Committee showed as of day 1 they had arranged a very good events in all aspects.

The hashtag #ECUP2017 had many ten thousands of unique viewers. During the 3 event days over 100,000.

The website worldkorfball.org proved to be another huge success. This website shows the match results – scores, penalties, replacements, eventual yellow and red cards – live due to the active link with the jury table in the venue(s), in combination with the ikfchannel live recordings on YouTube. We had over 150,000 visitors in 3 days.

Some real exciting games took place during day 2. The 1st game between Szentendre SZ HE (HUN) and the Catalan CK Vallparadís was an example, and was only decided in the last minutes (13-14). Even more exciting was the game NC Benfica (POR) – Trojans KC (ENG). The English team won by a decisive goal (9-10) scored by Kathryn Goodridge with only 7 seconds left.

On the finals day – day 3 – the English team Trojans KC played CK Vallparadís (CAT) in the bronze medal match. The match was equal till the very end and the spectators in the sold out venue made a lot of noise to support both teams. Again the decisive goal 23-24 came only a few seconds before the last whistle. The scorer was David Brooks and Trojans KC took the bronze medal. What a match!

The final in 51th IKF EUROPA CUP 2017 between TOP/Quoratio (NED) and Boeckenberg KC from Belgium had a number of remarkable caracteristics. The final score was 37-27 for TOP; so they earned the IKF Europa Cup 2017. Absolutely record breaking was the 15 goal result from the Belgian top scorer Jesse de Bremaeker. An absolute record in an IKF final. Two other high scorers were Nick Pikaar with 9 and Celeste Split with 8 goals, both TOP.

The crowed sports hall enyoyed the event very much and the enthusiasm of the crowds influenced the players in a positive way. The referees, jury and other officials did a great job as well. IKF President Jan Fransoo presented the the medals and the Alfons Janssens Cup.

The other places were ranked:

5th place: NC Benfica (POR) 6th place: Brno KK (CZE)

7th place: KV Adler Rauxel (GER)

8th place: Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE (HUN) 9th place: Kocaeli University Sport Club (TUR)

## IKF Europa Cup 2018; Platja d'Aro, Catalonia hosts the 52nd edition

From Thursday 11 till Saturday 13 January 2018 eight (8) club teams competed three (3) days to become the IKF Europa Cup winner in 2018. All matches were played in Platja d' Aro (Costa Brava- Girona), in the Palau d' Esports i Congressos Platja d' Aro.

The first round qualification event of the IKF Europa Cup was played 23 and 24 September 2017 in Prievidza, Slovakia.

The following teams played in the 52nd IKF EUROPA CUP KORFBALL:

BELGIUM AKC/Luma

CATALONIA Club Korfbal Vallparadís / Assessoria

CZECH REPUBLIC Ceske Budejovice
ENGLAND Trojans Korfball Club

GERMANY SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e. V.

HUNGARY 1908 SZAC Budapest NETHERLANDS TOP/Solar Compleet

PORTUGAL Núcleo de Corfebol de Benfica

The 2018 organiser Federation Catalonia de Korfball (FCK) did a very good job in close cooperation with IKF Coordinationg Officer. The IKF ECup was competed amongst eight (8) club teams. Until further notice eight-club teams will compete in the IKF ECup

For those that like close games, the first day of the tournament could not have a better start. The German champion, SG Pegasus, was in the first match nearly always leading with the smallest difference. As it seemed to come to a golden goal, at the end the Czech team, KCC SC Budejovice, did not manage to close the gap. It was an exciting game.

In the first half of match 2 it seemed unpredictable to determine a winner (6-8) The Belgians, AKC Luma, had much trouble with the inside moves of the Catalan team, CK Vallparadis, with penalties as a consequence. After tea the Catalans missed many opportunities to keep in the loop and AKC achieved a deserved win; 8-15.

Both teams started slowly in the next match. This gave Trojans the chance to have the lead in the beginning. However once the tactical setup was respected, TOP/Soar Compleet created what would turn out to be a big difference at the end (20-10).

Nobody could predict that NC Benfica from Portugal would have to struggle so hard to beat the best Hungarian team in years, 1908 SZAC Budapest. Only at the very end of the match, Benfica was able to assure a narrow win (15-13).

The battle of the Iberian peninsula - CK Vallparadis versus NC Benfica - is always a thrilling match, highly enjoyed by numerous spectators. Vallparadis did their utmost to take the lead but every time when it seemed that they would be able to equalise, the Portugese champion answered accurately. The win 18-16 by Benfica was well deserved

KCC Budejovice could never claim a victory against a very experienced team of Trojans. They were trailing all the time. The English team was simply too good. The win 25-17 was without doubt.

The Catalans were always in the lead in the first match of the second day. But at the very end of the match a player of 1908 SZAC Budapest unfortunately missed a penalty; 17-16 for CK Vallparadis was the end result.

Top/Solar Compleet – KCC Budejovice was never an exciting second match in day 2. Top was just too good. Top is ready for the final.

The clash between the champions of England, Trojans, and Germany, Pegasus, was an exciting game until there was a gap of 5 goals in the second half which the Trojans were incapable to reduce. The match ended in a clear 19-14 win for Pegasus.

It was clear the AKC Luma players need 15 minutes in the first half of the game to become effective in the second. During the first 15 minutes Benfica even was the better team. Two minutes before the end of the first half AKC took

the lead for the first time. (10 - 8). In the second half it turned out that Benfica had given their best and forgot to score giving AKC the chance to easily extend the lead. The 17-8 win for AKC was simple. Benfica did not score one goal in the second half.

The IKF Europa Cup 2018 has a Dutch champion again: TOP/Solar Compleet, after beating the Belgian AKC/Luma (28-21) in the IKF Europa Cup final in Platja d'Aro (Costa Brava – Girona, Catalonia). Peter Busik (SVK) was the good referee in this IKF ECup final.

The bronze medal match Benfica versus Pegasus had a remarkable result. The Germans, SG Pegasus, did win the bronze medal for the first time. They proved to be more effective than Benfica and the 22-19 win, after the last whistle of Marcel Luttik (NED), was the start of a big celebration.

#### IKF EUROPA CUP 2018 Final Ranking:

- 1. TOP/Solar Compleet
- 2. AKC/Luma
- 3. SG Pegasus
- 4. NC Benfica
- 5. Trojans Korfbsall Club
- 6. KCC Sokol České Budějovice
- 7. Club Korfbal Vallparadís
- 8. 1908 SZAC Budapest Korfball

It was an excellent event and all IKF referees, jury members and other officials contributed to this succes.

All results, games, statistics are available on www.worldkorfball.org and on IKF social media profiles

## IKF Europa Cup 2019; Kortrijk, Belgium hosts the 53rd edition

From Thursday 10 till Saturday 12 January 2019 eight (8) club teams competed in Kortrijk, Belgium, three (3) days to become the IKF Europa Cup winner in 2019.

After the first round event of the IKF Europa Cup 21 – 23 September 2018 in Kocaeli, Turkey the eight (8) qualified club teams were known. They played in two pools:

The teams qualified for the 53rd IKF EUROPA CUP korfball final round are placed in two pools:

#### POOL A

BELGIUM Kon. Boekenberg KC

PORTUGAL Núcleo de Corfebol de Benfica

ENGLAND Trojans Korfball Club
TURKEY Marmara University

POOL B

NETHERLANDS TOP/Solar Compleet

CZECH REPUBLIC KK Brno

GERMANY SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e. V.

HUNGARY 1908 SZAC Budapest

The match schedule can be found on the IKF website; <a href="https://ikf.org/event/ikf-europa-cup-2019/">https://ikf.org/event/ikf-europa-cup-2019/</a> or in the worldkorfball.org website; <a href="https://www.worldkorfball.org/competitions">https://www.worldkorfball.org/competitions</a>.

All matches will be played under the actual IKF Europa Cup Tournament Rules.

- This means 2 \* 16 (Thursday and Friday) and 2 \* 20 minutes (Saturday) real playing time (RPT)
- We play in period of 8 minutes on Thursday and Friday. On Saturday we play in periods of 10 minutes
- After period 1 and period 3 there is a 1 minute break
- At half time after period 2 there is a restperiod of 5 (Thursday and Friday) or 10 (Saturday)
  minutes
- Maximum 6 (Thursday and Friday) or 8 (Saturday) substitutions can take place and players may return to the game
- Golden Goal (GG); maximum 5 minutes RPT Thursday / Friday, 10 minutes RPT Saturday
- Each team has 1 (Thursday, Friday and Saturday) time out opportunity per match
- Penalties after GG; Thursday / Friday: sudden death, Saturday: whole team of 8 players

Everybody can watch and follow the IKF Europa Cup 2019 at all times and everywhere in the world:

- Via Live webcasting; <u>www.worldkorfball.org</u>. This electronic system is directly connected to the jurytable in the venue
- Via the ikfchannel on YouTube
- Via the Android app; the app takes it content from the worldkorfball.org database
- Via Facebook; <a href="https://www.facebook.com/korfball.org">https://www.facebook.com/korfball.org</a>
- Via Twitter; @korfball

All matches are played in Sportcampus Lange Munte, Bad Godesberglaan 22, 8500 Kortrijk, Belgium.

## APPENDIX I - Winners three-zone events (1967 - 1986)

Number	Year	Place	Date	Winner	Country
1.	1967	London	18 June	Ons Eibernest	NED
2.	1968	Antwerp	16 June	Blauw Wit	NED
3.	1969	Eindhoven	15 June	Blauw Wit	NED
4.	1970	Croydon	20/21 June	Ons Eibernest	NED
5.	1971	Antwerp	19/20 June	Ons Eibernest	NED
6.	1972	Amsterdam	17/18 June	ROHDA	NED
7.	1973	London	6/7 October	Ons Eibernest	NED
8.	1974	Antwerp	5/6 October	Ons Eibernest	NED
9.	1975	The Hague	4/5 October	Ons Eibernest	NED
10.	1976	London	2/3 October	Ons Eibernest	NED
11.	1977	Bochum	1/2 October	Riviera	BEL
12.	1978	Antwerp	30 Sep / 1 October	LUTO	NED
13.	1979	Papendrecht	29 September	PKC	NED
14.	1980	Papendrecht	4 October	PKC	NED
15.	1981	Ekeren	3 October	PKC	NED
16.	1982	Nijeveen	2/3 October	DOS'46	NED
17.	1983	Antwerp	1/2 October	ROHDA	NED
18.	1985	Papendrecht	13 April	PKC	NED
19.	1986	Antwerp	5/6 April	AKC	BEL

## NUMBER OF TIMES CUP WAS WON

7	Ons Eibernest	The Hague	NED
4	PKC	Papendrecht	NED
2	ROHDA	Amsterdam	NED
2	Blauw Wit	Amsterdam	NED
1	AKC	Antwerp	BEL
1	DOS '46	Nijeveen	NED
1	LUTO	Amsterdam	NED
1	Riviera	Antwerp	BEL
19			

## **APPENDIX II**

## Clubs participating in the three-zone tournaments

## NUMBER OF CLUBS PARTICIPATING (in the period 1967 – 1986)

 10	tournaments with 6 clubs	=	60 clubs
2	tournaments with 5 clubs	=	10 clubs
 7	tournaments with 4 clubs	=	28 clubs
19	tournaments with		98 clubs

## NUMBER OF TIMES CLUBS PARTICIPATED IN THE 19 TOURNAMENTS (from 1967 till 1986)

The Netherlands	Belgium	Great Britain	Germany
10 Ons Eibernest	7 ATBS	9 Vultrix	8 Adler Rauxel
5 ROHDA	5 Riviera	8 Bec	2 Schweriner KC
5 PKC	5 Kwik	7 Mitcham	
4 LUTO	4 Scaldis SC	2 Crystal Palace	
3 Blauw Wit	4 Borgerhout K.C.	1 Thornton	
1 Het Zuiden	2 AKC		
1 DOS'46	2 Boeckenberg K.C.		
1 Fortuna	1 Meeuwen		
	1 Mercurius		
30	31	27	10

## **APPENDIX III –**

## Review of match results in all three-zone tournaments

## 1. Mitcham London (Great Britain) 18 June 1967

Pool A	Mitcham–ROHDA	0–6
	ROHDA-ATBS	3–2
	ATBS-Mitcham	5–0
Pool B	Scaldis SC–Thornton	2–3
	Thornton–Ons Eibernest	0–7
	Ons Eibernest-Scaldis SC	6–2
Final Round	Mitcham-Scaldis SC	2–2 (5th/6th place; Scaldis penalty winner)
	ATBS-Thornton	2–2 (3rd/4th place; ATBS penalty winner)
	Ons Eibernest–ROHDA	4–2

## 2. Antwerp (Belgium) 16 June 1968

Pool A	Ons Eibernest–Mitcham	6–0
	ATBS-Ons Eibernest	2–2 (Ons Eibernest penalty winner)
	Mitcham-ATBS	1–6
Pool B	Bec-Scaldis SC	0–3
	Blauw Wit-Bec	9–2
	Scaldis SC-Blauw Wit	0–6
Final Round	Bec-Mitcham	2–0 (5th/6th place)
	Scaldis SC-ATBS	3–0 (3rd/4th place)
	Blauw Wit-Ons Eibernest	3–0 (IKF ECup final)

## 3. Eindhoven (The Netherlands) 15 June 1969

Pool A	Mitcham-Scaldis SC	1–1
	Scaldis SC-ROHDA	0–8
	ROHDA-Mitcham	0–1
Pool B	Bec-ATBS	2–3
	ATBS-Blauw Wit	1–7
	Blauw Wit-Bec	6–0
Final Round	Bec-Scaldis SC	1–4 (5th/6th place)
	ATBS-Mitcham	3–2 (3rd/4th place)
	Blauw Wit-ROHDA	3–2 (IKF ECup final)

## 4. Croydon London (Great Britain) 20/21 June 1970

Pool A	Mitcham–Ons Eibernest	4–9
	Ons Eibernest–Meeuwen	6–5
	Meeuwen-Mitcham	9–1
Pool B	ATBS-Bec	3–1
	Blauw Wit-ATBS	5–2
	Bec–Blauw Wit	1–5
Final Round	ATBS-Mitcham	5–3 (5th/6th place)
	Meeuwen-Bec	10–5 (3rd/4th place)
	Ons Eibernest–Blauw Wit	11–5 (IKF ECup final)

## 5. Antwerp (Belgium) 19 and 20 June 1971

Pool A	LUTO-Scaldis SC	6–0
	Mitcham-LUTO	2–4
	Scaldis SC-Mitcham	8–2
Pool B	Bec-ATBS	2–3
	Ons Eibernest-Bec	12–2
	ATBS-Ons Eibernest	8–12
Final Round	ATBS-Mitcham	12–3 (5th/6th place)
	Scaldis SC-Bec	11–5 (3rd/4th place)
	Ons Eibernest-LUTO	6–3 (IKF ECup final)

## 6. Amsterdam (The Netherlands) 17/18 June 1972

Pool A	Ons Eibernest-Bec	11–1
	Bec-AKC	4–5
	AKC-Ons Eibernest	4–12
Pool B	ROHDA-Mitcham	6–0
	Mercurius-ROHDA	4–10
	Mitcham-Mercurius	5–5
Final Round	Bec-Mercurius	4– 6 (5th/6th place)
	Mitcham-AKC	1–13 (3rd/4th place)
	Ons Eibernest–ROHDA	2–4 (IKF ECup final)

## 7. London (Great Britain) 6/7 October 1973

Pool A	ROHDA-Riviera	2–4	
	Riviera–Bec	11–2	
	Bec-ROHDA	0–8	
Pool B	Ons Eibernest–Vultrix	4–3	
	ATBS-Ons Eibernest	5–16	
	Vultrix–ATBS	2–5	
Final Round	Vultrix-Bec	7–7 (5th/6th place; Bec penalty winner)	
	ROHDA-ATBS	8–6 (3rd/4th place)	
	Riviera-Ons Eibernest	9–13 (IKF ECup final)	

## 8. Antwerp (Belgium) 5/6 October 1974

Pool A	Bec-ATBS	3–10
	Ons Eibernest–Bec	14–1
	ATBS-Ons Eibernest	2–8
Pool B	Vultrix–Riviera	0–11
	Het Zuiden-Vultrix	15–2
	Riviera–Het Zuiden	6–3
Final Round	Vultrix-Bec	2–6 (5th/6th place)
	ATBS-Het Zuiden	10–5 (3rd/4th place)
	Riviera-Ons Eibernest	6–7 (IKF ECup final)

## 9. The Hague (The Netherlands) 4/5 October 1975

Pool A	Vultrix-Ons Eibernest	1–19
	Boeckenberg-Vultrix	14–2
	Ons Eibernest–Boeckenberg	12–8
Pool B	Bec-LUTO	1–13
	Riviera–Bec	16–4
	LUTO-Riviera	7–5
Final Round	Bec-Vultrix	7–10 (5th/6th place)
	Boeckenberg-Riviera	13–8 (3rd/4th place)
	Ons Eibernest-LUTO	10–7 (IKF ECup final)

## 10. Mitcham London (Great Britain) 2/3 October 1976

	<b>.</b>	
Pool A	Vultrix–Kwik	3–4
	LUTO-Vultrix	12–3
	Kwik–LUTO	7–9
Pool B	Boeckenberg–Ons Eibernest	4–8
	Adler Rauxel–Boeckenberg	2–7
	Ons Eibernest–Adler Rauxel	15–0
Final Round	Vultrix–Adler Rauxel	3–7 (5th/6th place)
	Boeckenberg–Kwik	4–7 (3rd/4th place)
	LUTO-Ons Eibernest	4–5 (IKF ECup final)

## 11. Bochum (Germany) 1/2 October 1977

Kwik-Riviera	4 – 6
Adler Rauxel–Ons Eibernest	1 – 9
PKC–Kwik	6 – 4
Riviera-Adler Rauxel	4 – 0
Ons Eibernest-PKC	4 – 5
Adler Rauxel–Kwik	1 – 5
Ons Eibernest–Riviera	2 – 6
PKC–Adler Rauxel	11 – 0
Kwik-Ons Eibernest	5 – 4
Riviera-PKC	5 – 4
	<del>-</del>

## Final positions

Riviera	4	4	-	-	21–10	8	
PKC	4	3	-	1	26–13	6	
Kwik	4	2	-	2	18–17	4	
Ons Eibernest	4	1	-	3	19–17	2	
Adler Rauxel	4	0	-	4	2–29	0	

## 12. Antwerp (Belgium) 30 September/ 1 October 1978

Kwik-Riviera	6–10
Schweringer KC–LUTO	2–8
Vultrix–Kwik	1–10
Riviera–Schweringer KC	8–7
LUTO-Vultrix	14–1
Kwik-Schweringer KC	7–3
Vultrix-Riviera	1–15
LUTO–Kwik	9–1
Schweringer KC–Vultrix	6–4
Riviera-LUTO	3–7

## Final positions:

LUTO	4	4	-	-	38–7	8	
Riviera	4	3	-	1	36–21	6	
Kwik	4	2	-	2	24–23	4	
Schweringer KC	4	1	-	3	18–27	2	
Vultrix	4	0	-	4	7–45	0	

## 13. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 29 September 1979

First round	PKC-Mitcham	13–3
i iist iouiiu	Borgerhout-Schweringer KC	8–3
Final round	Mitcham–Schweringer KC	6–8 (3rd/4th place)
Final round	PKC-Borgerhout	13–8 (IKF ECup final)

#### 14. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 4 October 1980

First round	PKC–Vultrix	24–2	
	Kwik–Adler Rauxel	8–9	
	Vultrix–Kwik	6-15 (3rd/4th place)	
Final round	PKC-Adler Rauxel	14–4 (IKF ECup final)	

#### 15. Ekeren (Belgium) 3 October 1981

First round	PKC–Vultrix	12–2	
	Kwik–Adler Rauxel	8–2	
	Vultrix–Adler Rauxel	4-4 (3rd/4th place)	
Final round	PKC–Kwik	9–7 (IKF ECup final)	

## 16. Nijeveen (The Netherlands) 2/3 October 1982

DOS'46-Adler Rauxel	10–1
Borgerhout-Vultrix	13–2
DOS'46-Vultrix	16–2
Borgerhout-Adler Rauxel	9–4
Vultrix–Adler Rauxel	4–13
DOS'46-Borgerhout	12–6

#### Final positions:

DOS'46	3	3	-	-	38–9	6	
Borgerhout	3	2	-	1	28–18	4	
Adler Rauxel	3	1	-	2	18–23	2	
Vultrix	3	0	-	3	8–42	0	

## 17. Antwerp (Belgium) 1/2 October 1983

ROHDA–Vultrix	14–3
Borgerhout–Adler Rauxel	15–1
ROHDA-Adler Rauxel	20–0
Borgerhout–Vultrix	10–0
Adler Rauxel–Vultrix	7–3
ROHDA-Borgerhout	12–5

## Final positions:

ROHDA	3	3	-	-	46–8	6	
Borgerhout	3	2	-	1	30–13	4	
Adler Rauxel	3	1	-	2	8–38	2	
Vultrix	3	0	-	3	6–31	0	

## 18. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 13 April 1985

First round	PKC-Crystal Palace	20–1
First round	Borgerhout-Adler Rauxel	10–0
Final rayad	Crystal Palace–Adler Rauxel	3-7 (3rd/4th place)
Final round	PKC-Borgerhout	13–8 (IKF ECup final)

## 19. Antwerp (Belgium) 5/6 April 1986

Fortuna-Crystal Palace	12–2
AKC–Adler Rauxel	10–5
Fortuna-Adler Rauxel	16–1
AKC-Crystal Palace	16–4
Adler Rauxel–Crystal Palace	6–4
Fortuna-AKC	7–9 (after extra time) (IKF ECup final)
	6-6 (score at full time)

## Final positions:

	Matches	Wins	Draw	Loss	Goals	Points	
AKC	3	3	-	-	35–16	6	
Fortuna	3	2	-	1	35–12	4	
Adler Rauxel	3	1	-	2	12–30	2	
Crystal Palace	3	0	-	3	10–34	0	

## Appendix IV – Winners indoor events (1985 – now)

## **EVENTS; PLAYING CITIES, COUNTRIES AND WINNERS:**

Nr.	Year	Playing city	Country	Event dates	Winner	Country
1.	1985	Papendrecht	NED	27/28 December	PKC	NED
2.	1986	Bourges	FRA	27/28 December	ROHDA	NED
3.	1988	Antwerp	BEL	9/10 January	Oost Arnhem	NED
4.	1989	Arnhem	NED	7/8 January	Oost Arnhem	NED
5.	1990	Papendrecht	NED	26/27 January	PKC	NED
6.	1991	Lisbon	POR	12/13 January	Sikopi	BEL
7.	1992	Saint–Etienne	FRA	3/4 January	Catbavrienden	BEL
8.	1993	Castrop-Rauxel	GER	9/10 January	Deetos	NED
9.	1994	Olomouc	CZE	8/9 January	Deetos	NED
10.	1995	Debrecen	HUN	7/8 January	ROHDA	NED
11.	1996	Crystal Palace	ENG	6/7 January	Deetos	NED
12.	1997	Terrassa	CAT	4/5 January	Catbavrienden	BEL
13.	1998	Antwerp	BEL	2/4 January	Catbavrienden	BEL
14.	1999	Prague	CZE	7/9 January	PKC	NED
15.	2000	Papendrecht	NED	13/15 January	PKC	NED
16.	2001	Terrassa	CAT	12/14 January	Die Haghe	NED
17.	2002	Prague	CZE	10/12 January	PKC	NED
18.	2003	Antwerp	BEL	9/11 January	Die Haghe	NED
19.	2004	Delft	NED	8/10 January	Fortuna/Tempus	NED
20.	2005	Saint–Etienne	FRA	13/15 January	Fortuna/Tempus	NED
21.	2006	Prievidza	SVK	12/14 January	PKC/Café Bar	NED
22.	2007	Antwerp	BEL	11/13 January	DOS '46	NED
23.	2008	Carcavelos	POR	10/12 January	DOS '46	NED
24.	2009	Zaanstad	NED	21/24 January	Koog Zaandijk	NED
25.	2010	Herentals	BEL	20/23 January	DOS '46/Engeldot	NED
26.	2011	Budapest	HUN	19/22 January	Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex	NED
27.	2012	Warsaw	POL	17/21 January	TOP/Wereldtickets.nl	NED
28.	2013	Budapest	HUN	16/19 January	Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex	NED
29	2014	Papendrecht	NED	15/18 January	PKC/Hagero	NED
30	2015	Tielen / Herentals	BEL	14/17 January	TOP/Quoratio	NED
31	2016	Budapest	HUN	13/16 January	PKC/SWK Groep	NED
32	2017	Sassenheim	NED	12/14 January	TOP/Quoratio	NED
33	2018	Platja d'Aro	CAT	11/13 January	TOP/Solar Compleet	NED
***************************************			· <b>*</b>	•	··· <b>··</b> ·····	

Nr.	Year	Playing city	Country	Event dates	Winner	Country
34	2019	Kortrijk	BEL	10/12 January	TOP/SolarCompleet	NED

## NUMBER OF TIMES IKF EUROPA CUP WAS WON IN PERIOD 1985 TILL NOW:

Nr. of wins	Winner	City of the winner	Country
8	PKC	Papendrecht	NED
5	TOP	Sassenheim	NED
3	Koog Zaandijk	Koog aan de Zaan	NED
3	DOS '46	Nijeveen	NED
3	Catbavrienden	Antwerp	BEL
3	Deetos	Dordrecht	NED
2	Fortuna	Delft	NED
2	Die Haghe	The Hague	NED
2	ROHDA	Amsterdam	NED
2	Oost Arnhem	Arnhem	NED
1	Sikopi	Antwerp	BEL
00			

# Appendix V – Clubs participating in the final round of the indoor events

## NUMBER OF CLUBS PARTICIPATING (period 1985 till 2018)

1	event with 5 clubs	=	5 clubs
3	events with 6 clubs	Ш	18 clubs
1	event with 7 clubs	Ш	7 clubs
22	events with 8 clubs	=	176 clubs
1	event with 9 clubs	=	9 clubs
1	event with 10 clubs	=	10 clubs
4	events with 12 clubs	=	48 clubs
33	events with in total		273 clubs

#### NUMBER OF TIMES CLUBS PARTICIPATED IN THE FINAL ROUND OF THE INDOOR EVENTS

Belgium	Great Britain	The Netherlands	Germany
10 AKC	15 Mitcham	8 PKC	17 KV Adler Rauxel
8 Boeckenberg KC	10 Trojans KC	4 TOP	9 Grün-Weiss
6 Catbavrienden	3 Vultrix	4 Deetos	3 SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 E.v.
3 Sikopi	3 Invicta KC	3 Koog Zaandijk	2 Schweriner KC e.V. '67
2 Royal Scaldis KC	1 Nomads	3 DOS '46	
2 Riviera	1 Croydon	3 Fortuna	
1 Borgerhout KC		3 Oost Arnhem	
1 Mercurius		2 Die Haghe	
		2 Rohda	
33	33	32	31
			•••••

Portugal	Czech Republic	Catalonia	Hungary
12 NC Benfica	9 Ceske Budejovice	4 Vallparadis	9 Szentendre KK
7 ISEF Agon Clube	8 KC Kolin	4 CB Egara '85	5 MAFC
5 CC de Oeiras	3 Brno KK	3 Sint Llorenc	3 1908 SZAC KSE
3 GDdBD	3 KC Havirov	2 L'Autonoma	1 Gödöllö
2 Sangalhos	2 KC Decin	2 CK Vacarisses	
	2 TJ Znojmo	2 Marbella Juventud	
		1 KC Barcelona	
		1 CEVG	
29	27	19	18

France	Slovakia	Poland	Russia
6 CLL Bourges	9 Prievidza	3 AWF Warszawa	8 Orel OSTU / State University HSS
5 Bonson FJEP		2 Mega Sports Warszawa	
2 Orleans		2 AWF Krakow	
1 Pierrelatte		1 UKK WUM Warszawa	
		1 Biala Polaska	
14	9	9	8
Turkey	Armenia	Serbia	Scotland
Turkey 2 Kocaeli University Sports Club	<b>Armenia</b> 3 Armsikopi	Serbia 1 Beograd Korfball Club	Scotland 1 Edinburgh City KC
2 Kocaeli University			
2 Kocaeli University Sports Club 1 Marmara University		1 Beograd Korfball Club	1 Edinburgh City KC

# Appendix VI –

# Review of match results in all club indoor korfball events

## 1. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 27/28 December 1985

Pool A	Vultrix-Marbella Juventud	8– 9
	PKC-Marbella Juventud	28– 7
	Vultrix–PKC	7–25
Pool B	Adler Rauxel–CLL Bourges	16– 7
	CLL Bourges-Sikopi	4–29
	Sikopi–Adler Rauxel	22– 5
Final round	Vultrix-CLL Bourges	12– 4 (5th/6th place)
	Marbella Juventud-Adler Rauxel	6–14 (3rd/4th place)
	PKC–Sikopi	16–11 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

# 2. Bourges (France) 27/28 December 1986

Mitcham-Orleans	23–6
ROHDA-Adler Rauxel	26–10
AKC-Mitcham	28–10
Orleans-ROHDA	13–25
Adler Rauxel–AKC	6–24
Adler Rauxel-Orleans	19–10
ROHDA-Mitcham	29–17
Orleans-AKC	17–25
Mitcham–Adler Rauxel	11–15
AKC-ROHDA	14–16

## Final ranking IKF Europa Cup

ROHDA	4	4	-	-	96–54	8	
AKC	4	3	-	1	91–49	6	
Adler Rauxel	4	2	-	2	50–71	4	
Mitcham	4	1	-	3	61–78	2	
Orleans	4	-	-	4	46–92	-	

# 3. Antwerp (Belgium) 9/10 January 1988

Pool A	AKC-ISEF Lisboa	17–10
	ISEF Lisboa-Mitcham	9–10

	AKC-Mitcham	21–6
Pool B	Orleans-Oost Arnhem	6–24
	Adler Rauxel-Marbella Juventud	10–2
	Orleans-Marbella Juvent.	3–21
	Oost Arnhem–Adler Rauxel	23–3
Final round	Orleans-ISEF Lisboa	6–17 (5th/6th/7th place)
	Marbella Juventud-ISEF Lisboa	9–10 (5th/6th/7th place)
	Adler Rauxel–Mitcham	10–6 (3rd/4th place)
	Oost Arnhem-AKC	17–11 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

# 4. Arnhem (The Netherlands) 7 / 8 January 1989

Pool A	AKC-CLL Bourges	27–6
	Adler Rauxel-CB Egara '85	14–5
	CLL Bourges-CB Egara '85	12–7
	AKC-Adler Rauxel	23–5
Pool B	Oost Arnhem-AWF Krakow	25–12
	Mitcham-ISEF Agon Clube	8–9
	Mitcham-AWF Krakow	14–7
	Oost Arnhem-ISEF Agon Clube	22–7
Final round	AWF Krakow-CB Egara '85	6–4 (7th/8th place)
	Mitcham-CLL Bourges	11–4 (5th/6th place)
	ISEF Agon Clube-Adler Rauxel	9–11 (3rd/4th place)
	Oost Arnhem–AKC	16–6 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

# 5. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 26 / 27 January 1990

Pool A	Catbavrienden–AWF Krakow	26–3
	Adler Rauxel–CLL Bourges	13–11
	AWF Krakow-CLL Bourges	5–15
	Catbavrienden–Adler Rauxel	12–9
Pool B	PKC-KC Decin	21–6
	ISEF Agon Clube–Mitcham	Mitcham winner after penalties
		11–11 (after extra time)
		10-10 (score at full time)
	KC Decin-ISEF Agon Clube	7–9
	PKC-Mitcham	27–8
Final round	AWF Krakow–KC Decin	8–13 (7th/8th place)
	CLL Bourges-ISEF Agon Clube	8–12 (5th/6th place)
	Adler Rauxel–Mitcham	15–12 (3rd/4th place)
	Catbavrienden–PKC	9–11 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

# 6. Lisbon (Portugal) 12 / 13 January 1991

Pool A	Sikopi-KC Decin	23–8
	Adler Rauxel-CLL Bourges	11–10
	KC Decin-CLL Bourges	10–16
	Sikopi–Adler Rauxel	24–15
Pool B	Fortuna–Egara '85	32–4
	ISEF Agon Clube–Vultrix	8–9
	Egara '85–ISEF Agon Clube	9–14
	Fortuna–Vultrix	30–10
Final round	KC Decin–Egara '85	9–11 (7th/8th place)
	CLL Bourges-ISEF Agon Clube	6-15 (5th/6th place)
	Adler Rauxel–Vultrix	18–17 (3rd/4th place)
	Fortuna–Sikopi	14–15 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

## 7. Saint-Etienne (France) 3 / 4 January 1992

- a. On the basis of the 1991 results admitted to the 1992 tournament the champion clubs of Belgium, The Netherlands, Germany, Great Britain, Portugal, France and Spain.
- b. First round matches on 9 and 10 November 1991 in The Netherlands for one place in the finals between the champion clubs of Czechoslovakia (KC Decin), Armenia (Armsikopi), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Luxemburg (Ro'de Le'w):

09.11.91	Rheden:	Armsikopi	Warszawa	17–8	
09.11.91	Rheden:	KC Decin	Ro'de Le'w	23–2	
09.11.91	Rheden:	Warszawa	KC Decin	7–10	
09.11.91	Rheden:	Ro'de Le'w	Armsikopi	3–32	
10.11.91	Nijmegen:	Warszawa	Ro'de Le'w	29–1	
10.11.91	Nijmegen:	Armsikopi	KC Decin	14–13	

### Final ranking

Armsikopi	3	3	-	-	63–24	6	
Decin	3	2	-	1	46–23	4	
Warszawa	3	1	-	2	44–28	2	
Ro'de Le'w	3	0	-	3	6–84	0	

c. Matches on 3/4 January 1992 in Saint-Etienne (FRA)

Pool A	Deetos–Egara '85	33–9
	Adler Rauxel–CLL Bourges	10–6
	Egara '85-CLL Bourges	13–22
	Deetos-Adler Rauxel	24–15
Pool B	Catbavrienden–Armsikopi	30–9
	Mitcham–Sangalhos	13–14
	Armsikopi-Mitcham	23–25 (after extra time, score at full time 17–17)
	Catbavrienden–Sangalhos	39–6
Final round	Egara '85–Armsikopi	8–23 (7th/8th place)
	CLL Bourges-Mitcham	12–26 (5th/6th place)
	Adler Rauxel–Sangalhos	17–10 (3rd/4th place)
	Deetos-Catbavrienden	Catbavrienden winner after penalties (5–4)
		18–18 (after extra time)
		13-13 (score at full time)
		(IKF Europa Cup Final)

## 8. Castrop-Rauxel (Germany) 9 / 10 January 1993

- a. On the basis of the 1992 results admitted to the 1993 tournament the champion clubs of Belgium, The Netherlands, Germany, Portugal, Great Britain and France.
- b. First round matches in Debrecen (HUN) on 28/29 November 1992 for two places in the finals between the champion clubs of Czechoslovakia (VKC Kolín), Armenia (Armsikopi), Poland (AWF Krakow) and Hungary (Gödöllö):

Armsikopi–Gödöllö	14–11
VKC Kolín-AWF Krakow	14–6
Gödöllö–VKC Kolín	8–16
Armsikopi-AWF Krakow	20–12
Gödöllö-AWF Krakow	11–7
Armsikopi–VKC Kolín	14–16

#### Final ranking

VKC Kolín	3	3	-	-	46–28	6	
Armsikopi	3	2	-	1	48–39	4	
Gödöllö	3	1	-	2	30–37	2	
AWF Krakow	3	-	-	3	25–45	-	

## c. Matches on 9/10 January 1993 in Castrop-Rauxel (GER)

Pool A	Catbavrienden-Armsikopi	25–7	
	ISEF Agon Clube–Nomads	16–18 (after extra time, score at full time 13–13)	
	Armsikopi–ISEF Agon Clube	18–12	
	Catbavrienden–Nomads	23–3	
Pool B	Deetos-VKC Kolín	24–9	
	Grün-Weiss-CLL Bourges	19–5	
	Deetos–Grün-Weiss	12–9	
	VKC Kolín-CLL Bourges	18–8	
Final round	ISEF Agon Clube-CLL Bourges	13–8 (7th/8th place)	
	Armsikopi–VKC Kolín	13–9 (5th/6th place)	
	Nomads–Grün-Weiss	8–9 (3rd/4th place)	
	Deetos–Catbavrienden	10–9 (IKF Europa Cup Final)	

## 9. Olomouc (Czech Republic) 8 / 9 January 1994

- a. On the basis of the 1993 results admitted to the 1994 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands, Belgium, Germany, Great Britain, Armenia and the Czech Republic.
- b. 'First round matches in Chateauroux (FRA) on 9/10 October 1993 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Portugal (Sangalhos), France (CLL Bourges), Hungary (Gödöllö), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Spain (Egara '85).

Gödöllö–Egara '85	8–12
AWF Warszawa–Sangalhos	6–10
Bourges-Gödöllö	14–5
Egara '85–AWF Warszawa	14–11
Sangalhos-Bourges	18–10
Gödöllö-AWF Warszawa	15–9
Egara '85–Sangalhos	7–18
AWF Warszawa-Bourges	6–10
Sangalhos–Gödöllö	17–8
Bourges–Egara '85	12–14

#### Final ranking

Sangalhos	4	4	-	-	63–31	8	
Egara '85	4	3	-	1	47–49	6	
Bourges	4	2	-	2	46–43	4	
Gödöllö	4	1	-	3	36–43	2	
AWF Warszawa	4	-	-	4	32–49	-	

c. Matches on 8/9 January 1994 in Olomouc (CZE)

Pool A	Borgerhout KC–Sangalhos	14–8
	Grün-Weiss '67–VKC Kolín	14–8
	Sangalhos-VKC Kolín	12–15
	Borgerhout KC-Grün-Weiss	22–14
Pool B	Vultrix–Armsikopi	14–13
	Deetos–Egara '85	27–13
	Armsikopi–Egara '85	16–12
	Vultrix-Deetos	11–30
Final round	Sangalhos–Egara '85	14–11 (7th/8th place)
	VKC Kolín–Armsikopi	18–13 (5th/6th place)
	Grün-Weiss '67–Vultrix	11– 9 (3rd/4th place)
	Deetos-Borgerhout KC	20– 7 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

## 10. Debrecen (Hungary) 7 / 8 January 1995

- a. On the basis of the 1994 results admitted to the 1995 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands, Belgium, Germany, Great Britain and the Czech Republic. Also admitted the host country's champions Gödöllö.
- b. First round matches in Cruz Quebrada (POR) and Prievidza (SVK) on 29 and 30 October 1994 for two places in the final round:

Cruz Quebrada:	ISEF Agon Clube (POR)–FJEP Bonson (FRA)	17–7
Prievidza:	Prievidza (SVK)-Biala Podlaska (POL)	17–21
	Prievidza (SVK)-Biala Podlaska (POL)	20–17
	Prievidza (SVK)–Biala Podlaska (POL)	19–11

c. Matches on 7/8 January 1995 in Debrecen (HUN).

Pool A	Catbavrienden–ISEF Agon Clube	22–6
	Grün-Weiss–Gödöllö	31–6
	ISEF Agon Clube-Gödöllö	15–12
	Catbavrienden-Grün-Weiss	22–12
Pool B	ROHDA-Prievidza	34–14
	Mitcham-VKC Kolín	16-15 (after extra time, score at full time 13-13)
	Prievidza–VKC Kolín	12–25
	ROHDA-Mitcham	28–8
Final Round	Prievidza–Gödöllö	14–16 (7th/8th place, after extra time, score at full time 10–10)
	VKC Kolin-ISEF Agon Clube	13–16 (5th/6th place)
	Mitcham–Grün-Weiss	10–22 (3rd/4th place)
	ROHDA-Catbavrienden	23–19 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 11. Crystal Palace, London (Great Britain) 6 / 7 January 1996

- On the basis of the 1995 results admitted to the 1996 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (Deetos) and Belgium (Mercurius).
- b. First round matches in Castrop-Rauxel (GER) on 23 September 1995 for one place in the final round between the champion clubs of Germany (Grün-Weiss), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Slovakia (Prievidza):

Grün-Weiss-AWF Warszawa	20–11
AWF Warszawa-Prievidza	14–21
Prievidza-Grün-Weiss	13–25

#### Final ranking

Grün-Weiss	2	2	-	-	45–24	4	
Prievidza	2	1	-	-	34–39	2	
AWF Warszawa	2	-	-	2	25–41	-	

c. First round matches in Guilherand–Granges (FRA) on 30 September and 1 October 1995 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Great Britain (Mitcham), France (CLL Bourges), Portugal (ISEF Agon Clube) and Spain (St. Llorenc):

Mitcham-Bourges	21–5
ISEF Agon Clube–St. Llorenc	16–11
Bourges-ISEF Agon Clube	9–25
St. Llorenc–Mitcham	9–29
Bourges-St. Llorenc	8–13
Mitcham–ISEF Agon Clube	24–13

## Final ranking

Mitcham	3	3	-	-	74–27	6	
ISEF Agon Clube	3	2	-	1	54–44	4	
St. Llorenc	3	1	-	2	33–53	2	
Bourges	3	-	-	3	22–59	-	

d. First round matches in Yerevan (ARM) for one place in the final round between the champion clubs of Armenia and the Czech republic. As the club from the Czech Republic was disinclined to travel to Armenia, the Armenian champion was placed for the final round. Travel difficulties made it impossible for Armsikopi to travel to Great Britain for the final round. Prievidza was invited to take its place but could not come either. St. Llorenc was then invited and the Spanish champions accepted.

# e. Matches on the 6/7 January 1996 in Crystal Palace (ENG):

Pool A	Mercurius-ISEF Agon Clube	25– 7
	Grün-Weiss-Mercurius	12–17
	ISEF Agon Clube-Grün-Weiss	10–16
Pool B	Deetos–Mitcham	18– 7
	St. Llorenc–Deetos	16–22
	Mitcham-St. Llorenc	23– 7
Final Round	ISEF Agon Clube-St. Llorenc	12– 6 (5th/6th place)
	Grün-Weiss-Mitcham	12–14 (3rd/4th place)
	Mercurius-Deetos	14–22 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 12. Terrassa (Spain) 4 / 5 January 1997

- a. On the basis of the 1996 results admitted to the 1997 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (Oost Arnhem) and Belgium (Catbavrienden). Also admitted the host country's champions St.Llorenc.
- b. First round matches in Prievidza (SVK) on 21 September 1996 for one place in the final round between the champion clubs of Slovakia (SKK Prievidza), Hungary (MAFC) and Luxemburg (KCL Ro'de Le'w):

MAFC-KCL Ro'de Le'w	21– 4
SKK Prievidza–KCL Ro'de Le'w	37– 7
MAFC-SKK Prievidza	25–22

#### Final ranking

MAFC	2	2	-	-	46–26	4	
SKK Prievidza	2	1	-	1	59–32	2	
KCL Ro'de Le'w	2	-	-	2	11–58	-	

c. First round matches in London (GBR) on 21 September 1996 for one place in the final round between the champion clubs of Great Britain (Croydon), France (FJEP Bonson) and Portugal (ISEF Agon Clube):

Croydon-FJEP Bonson	14– 7
ISEF Agon Clube-FJEP Bonson	16– 6
Croydon-ISEF Agon Clube	16–14

#### Final ranking:

Croydon	2	2	-	-	30–21	4	
ISEF Agon Clube	2	1	-	1	30–22	2	
FJEP Bonson	2	-	-	2	13–30	-	

d. First round matches Castrop Rauxel (GER) on 28 September 1996 for one place in the final round between the champion clubs of Germany (Grün-Weiss), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and the Czech Republic (VKC Kolín).

Grün-Weiss-AWF Warszawa	19– 5
AWF Warszawa–VKC Kolín	15–17
VKC Kolín-Grün-Weiss	15–11

#### Final ranking

VKC Kolín	2	2	-	1	32–26	4	
Grün-Weiss	2	1	-	1	30–20	2	
AWF Warszawa	2	-	-	2	20–36	-	

# e. Matches on 4/5 January 1997 in Terrassa (ESP)

	Oost Arnhem-MAFC	20– 8
Pool A	Oost Arnhem-VKC Kolín	29– 9
	MAFC-VKC Kolín	15–16
	St. Llorenc-Croydon	15–13
Pool B	Catbavrienden-Croydon	24– 7
	Catbavrienden-St. Llorenc	34–11
	MAFC-Croydon	14–19 (5th/6th place)
Final round	VKC Kolín-St. Llorenc	22- 8 (3rd/4th place)
	Oost Arnhem–Catbavrienden	19–20 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 13. Antwerp (Belgium) 2-4 January 1998

- a. On the basis of the 1997 results admitted to the 1998 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (PKC) and Belgium (Catbavrienden). However, for religious reasons PKC declines to participate.
- b. First round matches in Havirov (CZE) on 20/21 September 1997 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of the Czech Republic (I-KC Havirov), Slovakia (SKK Prievidza) and Poland (AWF Biala Podlaska):

Havirov-Prievidza	22–12
Prievidza-Biala Podlaska	19–18
Biala Podlaska–Havirov	10–20

#### Final ranking

KC Havirov	2	2	-	-	42–22
Prievidza	2	1	-	1	31–40
AWF Biala Podlaska	2	-	-	2	28–39

Also placed: AWF Biala Podlaska (as best of the three teams that finished third in their pool).

c. First round matches in Luxemburg (LUX) on 27/28 September 1997 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Luxemburg (KCL Ro'de Le'w), Hungary (MAFC) and Germany (Grün-Weiss):

Ro'de Le'w-MAFC	8–28
MAFC-Grün-Weiss	12–24
Grün-Weiss-Ro'de Le'w	31– 6

#### Final ranking

Grün-Weiss	2	2	-	-	55–18
MAFC	2	1	-	1	40–32
Ro'de Le'w	2	-	-	2	14–59

d. First round matches in Terrassa (ESP) on 27/28 September 1997 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Great Britain (Mitcham), Catalonia, Spain (St. Llorenc) and Portugal (Clube de Corfebol de Oeiras):

Mitcham-CC Oeiras	21–15	
CC Oeiras-St. Llorenc	22–12	
St. Llorenc-Mitcham	3–22	

#### Final ranking

Mitcham	2	2	-	-	43–18
CC Oeiras	2	1	-	1	37–33
St. Llorenc	2	<del>-</del>	-	2	15–44

Mitcham and CC Oeiras qualify.

# e. Matches from 2–4 January 1998 in Antwerp (BEL)

Pool A	Catbavrienden-MAFC	35–8
	CC Oeiras –Prievidza	14–9
	MAFC- CC Oeiras	17–13
	Catbavrienden-Prievidza	21–11
	Prievidza–MAFC	11–14
	Catbavrienden- CC Oeiras	22–8
Pool B	Havirov-Mitcham	15–19
	Grün-Weiss–Biala Podlaska	16–8
Pool B	Mitcham-Grün-Weiss	18–11
	Biala Podlaska-Havirov	10–15
	Biala Podlaska–Mitcham	10–28
	Havirov–Grün-Weiss	17–21 after extra time; score at full time 15–15)
Final round	Prievidza–Biala Podlaska	15–16 (7th/8th place)
	CC Oeiras –Havirov	10–17 (5th/6th place)
	MAFC-Grün-Weiss	12–20 (3rd/4th place)
	Catbavrienden–Mitcham	21– 9 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 14. Prague (Czech Republic) 7-9 January 1999

- a. On the basis of the 1998 results admitted to the 1999 tournament the champion clubs of Belgium (AKC) and Great Britain (Mitcham). Also admitted the host country's champion club VKC Kolín.
- b. First round matches in Lomza (POL) on 3 and 4 October 1998 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Poland (AWF Warszawa), Slovakia (SKK Prievidza), Hungary (MAFC) and Cyprus (HTI Nicosia).

AWF Warszawa-Prievidza	17–16 (golden goal)
MAFC-HTI Nicosia	30–10
AWF Warszawa-HTI Nicosia	30– 8
Prievidza–MAFC	15–13
HTI Nicosia –Prievidza	9–28
AWF Warszawa-MAFC	18–11

#### Final ranking

AWF Warszawa	3	3	-	-	65–35	8	
SKK Prievidza	3	2	-	1	59–39	7	
MAFC	3	1	-	2	54–43	3	
HTI Nicosia	3	-	-	3	27–88	-	

c. First round matches in Castrop-Rauxel (GER) on 10 and 11 October 1998 for three places in the final round between the champion clubs of The Netherlands (PKC), Portugal (Grupo Desportivo dos Bons Dias), France (ALK Sarras), Germany (Grün-Weiss), Catalonia, Spain (Korfbal L'Autonoma) and Luxemburg (KCL Ro'de Le'w).

Pool A	PKC-Sarras L'Autonoma-PKC	34–11	
	L'Autonoma-PKC	10–26	
	Sarras-L'Autonoma	9–16	

#### Final ranking

PKC	2	2	-	-	60–21	6	
Korfbal L'Autonoma	2	1	-	1	26–35	3	
ALK Sarras	2	-	-	2	20–50	-	

Qualified: PKC

Pool B	GDdBD-Grün-Weiss	10– 9	
	Grün-Weiss–Ro'de Le'w	28– 7	
	Ro'de Le'w-GDdBD	4–29	

# Final ranking

GDdBD	2	2	-	-	39–13	6	
Grün-Weiss	2	1	-	1	37–17	3	
Ro'de Le'w	2	-	-	2	11–57	-	

Qualified: GDdBD

Playoffs	Grün-Weiss–Sarras	31– 4
	L'Autonoma-Ro'de Le'w	22– 6
	Grün-Weiss-L'Autonoma	21–11

Qualified: Grün-Weiss

# d. Matches from 7–9 January 1999 in Prague (CZE)

Pool A	AKC-Grün-Weiss	17–14
	Kolín-Prievidza	21–12
	Grün-Weiss–Kolín	11–16
	AKC-Prievidza	31– 9
	Grün-Weiss-Prievidza	19–17
	AKC–Kolín	26–10
Pool B	PKC-Mitcham	28– 8
	GDdBD-Warszawa	16–17 (after golden goal)
	Mitcham-GDdBD	17–14
	PKC-Warszawa	31–12
	Mitcham-Warszawa	24–16
	PKC-GSdBD	28–16
Final round	SKK Prievidza–GDdBD	10–17 (7th/8th place)
	AWF Warszawa-Grün-Weiss	8–15 (5th/6th place)
	VCK Kolín–Mitcham	10–12 (3rd/4th place)
	AKC-PKC	13–15 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 15. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 13-15 January 2000

- a. On the basis of the 1999 results admitted to the 2000 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (PKC), Belgium (Sikopi), Great Britain (Mitcham) and the Czech Republic (VCK Kolín).
- b. First round matches in Loures (POR) from 1–3 October 1999 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Catalonia, Spain (L'Autonoma), Cyprus (HTI Nicosia), Portugal (Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias) and France (ALK Sarras).

HTI Nicosia –GDdBD	12–40
Sarras-L'Autonoma	5–20
L'Autonoma-HTI Nicosia	22–8
GDdBD-Sarras	33–4
Sarras-HTI Nicosia	16–11
GDdBD-L'Autonoma	20–13

#### Final ranking

GDdBD	3	3	-	-	93–29	9	
L'Autonoma	3	2	-	1	55–33	6	
Sarras	3	1	-	2	25–64	3	
HTI Nicosia	3	-	-	3	31–78	-	

c. First round matches in Biala Podlaska (POL) on 2 and 3 October 1999 for two places in the final round between the cahmpion clubs of Germany (Adler Rauxel), Hungary (MAFC Budapest), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Slovakia (SKK Prievidza).

Adler Rauxel–MAFC	21–10
AWF Warszawa–Prievidza	16–10
Adler Rauxel–Prievidza	16–15
MAFC-AWF Warszawa	12–13
MAFC-Prievidza	10–21
Adler Rauxel–AWF Warszawa	16–14

#### Final ranking

Adler Rauxel	3	3	-	-	53–39	9
AWF Warszawa	3	2	-	1	43–38	6
Prievidza	3	1	-	2	46–42	3
MAFC	3	-	-	3	32–55	-

# d. Matches from 13-15 January 2000 in Papendrecht (NED)

Pool A	GDdBD-AWF Warszawa	20–17
	PKC-Mitcham	31– 8
	Mitcham-GDdBD	20–18
	PKC-AWF Warszawa	31–12
	Mitcham-AWF Warszawa	25–16
	PKC-GDdBD	30– 7
Pool B	Kolín–Adler Rauxel	20–25
	Sikopi–L'Autonoma	34– 7
	Adler Rauxel–L'Autonoma	19–15
	Sikopi–Kolín	28–13
	Kolín–L'Autonoma	21– 8
	Sikopi–Adler Rauxel	33– 9
Final Round	AWF Warszawa–L'Autonoma	21–10 (7th/8th place)
	GDdBD-VCK Kolín	18–17 (5th/6th place)
	Mitcham–Adler Rauxel	19–20 (3rd/4th place) (after golden goal)
	PKC–Sikopi	19–16 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 16. Terrassa (Spain) 12-14 January 2001

- a. On the basis of the 2000 results admitted to the 2001 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (Die Haghe), Belgium (AKC) and Germany (Grün-Weiss). Also admitted the champion club of the host country (St. Llorenc).
- b. First round matches in Krakow (POL) on 7 and 8 October 2000 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Poland (AWF Warszawa), Slovakia (SKK Prievidza), Czech Republic (KC Havirov), Hungary (MAFC) and Cyprus (HTI Nicosia).

Warszawa-MAFC	22–14
Prievidza-KC Havirov	10–24
HTI Nicosia –Warszawa	6–33
MAFC-Prievidza	17–22
KC Havirov-HTI Nicosia	29–8
KC Havirov-MAFC	18–9
Prievidza–Warszawa	13–14 (after golden goal)
MAFC-HTI Nicosia	16–8
Warszawa-KC Havirov	15–25
HTI Nicosia –Prievidza	11–25

### Final ranking

KC Havirov	4	4	-	-	96–42	12	
Warszawa	4	3	-	1	84–58	8	
Prievidza	4	2	-	2	70–66	7	
MAFC	4	1	-	3	56–70	3	
HTI Nicosia	4	-	-	4	33–103	-	

c. First round matches in Annonay (FRA) on 14 and 15 October 2000 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Great Britain (Mitcham), Portugal (NC Benfica), France (FJEP Bonson) and Luxemburg (KCL Ro'de Le'w).

Mitcham-Bonson	18–9
Benfica-KCL Ro'de Le'w	30–5
Mitcham–KCL Ro'de Le'w	21–2
Benfica-Bonson	34–6
Mitcham-Benfica	12–17
Bonson-KCL Ro'de Le'w	15–6

#### Final ranking

Benfica	3	3	-	-	81–23	9	
Mitcham	3	2	-	1	51–28	6	
Bonson	3	1	-	2	30–58	3	
KCL Ro'de Le'w	3	-	-	3	13–66	-	

# d. Final round matches from 12–14 January 2001 in Terrassa (ESP)

Die Haghe-Benfica	35–11	
St Llorenc-KC Havirov	10–25	
Die Haghe–KC Havirov	30–15	
St Llorenc-Benfica	17–13	
St Llorenc-Die Haghe	11–32	
KC Havirov–Benfica	24–18	
AWF Warszawa-AKC	9–29	
Mitcham–Grün-Weiss	11–21	
AKC-Grün-Weiss	26–11	
Mitcham-AWF Warszawa	16–18	
AKC-Mitcham	27–10	
Grün-Weiss-AWF Warszawa	19–18 (after golden goal)	
Benfica-Mitcham	11–10 (7th/8th place)	
St Llorenc-AWF Warszawa	14–20 (5th/6th place)	
KC Havirov-Grün-Weiss	15–17 (3rd/4th place)	
Die Haghe-AKC	19–16 (IKF Europa Cup Final)	
	St Llorenc–KC Havirov  Die Haghe–KC Havirov  St Llorenc–Benfica  St Llorenc–Die Haghe  KC Havirov–Benfica  AWF Warszawa–AKC  Mitcham–Grün-Weiss  AKC–Grün-Weiss  Mitcham–AWF Warszawa  AKC–Mitcham  Grün-Weiss–AWF Warszawa  Benfica–Mitcham  St Llorenc–AWF Warszawa  KC Havirov–Grün-Weiss	

#### 17. Prague (Czech Republic) 10-12 January 2002

- a. On the basis of the 2001 results admitted to the 2002 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (PKC), Belgium (AKC), Germany (Grün-Weiss) and the Czech Republic (I-KC Havirov).
- b. First round matches in Prievidza (SVK) on 6 and 7 October 2001 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Poland (AWF Warszawa), Slovakia (SKK Prievidza), Hungary (MAFC) and Russia (Orel STU).

MAFC-Prievidza	16–10
Warszawa-Orel STU	15–11
Prievidza-Orel STU	20–13
Warszawa-MAFC	17–18
MAFC-Orel STU	11–13
Warszawa-Prievidza	15–16 (after Golden Goal)

#### Final ranking

MAFC	3	2	-	1	45–40	6	
Prievidza	3	2	-	1	46–44	5	
Warszawa	3	1	-	2	47–45	4	
Orel STU	3	1	-	2	37–46	3	

c. First round matches in Odivelas (POR) on 13 and 14 October 2001 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Portugal (Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias), Catalonia (St. Llorenc), France (Pierrelatte) and Great Britain (Mitcham).

GDdBD-St. Llorenc	24–18
Pierrelatte–Mitcham	10–18
GDdBD-Pierrelatte	21–10
Mitcham-St. Llorenc	11–10
GDdBD-Mitcham	20–12
St. Llorenc-Pierrelatte	18–12

#### **Final Ranking**

GDdBD	3	3	-	-	65–40	9	
Mitcham	3	2	-	1	41–40	6	
St. Lorenc	3	1	-	2	46–47	3	
Pierrelatte	3	-	-	3	32–57	-	

# d. Final round matches from 10–12 January 2002 in Prague (CZE)

	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Pool A	AKC–KC Havirov	20–11
	Mitcham–Prievidza	10–16
	AKC–Mitcham	29–4
	KC Havirov–Prievidza	21–13
	Mitcham–KC Havirov	9–21
	AKC-Prievidza	28–8
Pool B	PKC-MAFC	26–10
	Grün-Weiss– Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias	12–17
	PKC- Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias	23–10
	Grün-Weiss–MAFC	16–13
	PKC-Grün-Weiss	28–10
	Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias -MAFC	19–20
Final Round	Mitcham- MAFC	18–14 (7th/8th place)
	Prievidza–Grün-Weiss	12–19 (5th/6th place)
	KC Havirov– Grupo Desportivo dos Bon Dias	15-14 (3rd/4th place)
	PKC-AKC	16–14 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 18. Antwerp (Belgium) 9-11 January 2003

- a. On the basis of the 2002 results admitted to the 2003 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (Die Haghe), Belgium (AKC), Czech Republic (Sokol Ceske Budejovice) and Portugal (NC Benfica).
- b. First round matches in Annonay (FRA) on 5 and 6 October 2002 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Germany (Adler Rauxel), Catalonia, Spain (L'Autonoma), France (FJEP Bonson) and Great Britain (Invicta KC).

Adler Rauxel–L' Autonoma 16–12  FJEP Bonson–Invicta 4–23  FJEP Bonson–L'Autonoma 13–22  Adler Rauxel–Invicta 16–19  L'Autonoma–Invicta 12–19
FJEP Bonson–L'Autonoma 13–22  Adler Rauxel–Invicta 16–19
Adler Rauxel–Invicta 16–19
Table 1 days of 111 days of 121 days of 12
L'Autonoma-Invicta 12-19
FJEP Bonson–Adler Rauxel 13–21

#### **Final Ranking**

Invicta	3	3	-	-	61–32	9	
Adler Rauxel	3	2	-	1	53–44	6	
L'Autonoma	3	1	-	2	46–48	3	
FJEP Bonson	3	-	-	3	30–66	-	

c. First round matches in Budapest (HUN) on 5 and 6 October 2002 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Slovakia (SKK Prievidza), Hungary (Szentendre KK), Poland (AWF Biala Podlaska) and Russia (Orel STU).

Prievidza-Szentendre	17–16
Biala Podlaska-Orel STU	11–12 (after golden goal)
Prievidza-Orel STU	14–11
Biala Podlaska–Szentendre	10–18
Biala Podlaska–Prievidza	15–17
Szentendre-Orel STU	14–13

#### **Final Ranking**

Prievidza	3	3	-	-	48–42	9	
Szentendre	3	2	-	1	48–40	6	
Orel STU	3	1	-	2	36–39	2	
Biala Podlaska	3	-	-	3	36–47	1	

# d. Final round matches from 9–11 January 2003 in Antwerp (BEL)

Pool A	Adler Rauxel–Benfica	11–10 (after golden goal)
	AKC-Prievidza	26– 7
	Adler Rauxel–Prievidza	15–18
	AKC-Benfica	28– 9
	Benfica-Prievidza	13–14
	Adler Rauxel–AKC	10–23
Pool B	Ceske Budejovice-Szentendre	19–12
	Die Haghe-Invicta	21–12
	Invicta-Szentendre	17–14
	Ceske Budejovice-Die Haghe	15–20
	Die Haghe-Szentendre	29– 7
	Ceske Budejovice-Invicta	17–18
Final Round	Benfica-Szentendre	15– 9 (7th/8th place)
	Adler Rauxel–Ceske Budejovice	12–17 (5th/6th place)
	Prievidza–Invicta	7–21 (3rd/4th place)
	AKC-Die Haghe	9–10 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 19. Delft (The Netherlands) 8-10 January 2004

- a. On the basis of the 2003 results admitted to the 2004 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (Fortuna), Belgium (AKC), Great Britain (Invicta) and Slovakia (Prievidza).
- b. First round matches in Ceske Budejovice (CZE) on 4 and 5 October 2003 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Poland (Cirkus), Hungary (MAFC), Czech Republic (Ceske Budejovice) and Russia (Orel STU).

Cirkus-MAFC	12–19
Ceske Budejovice– Orel STU	16–7
Cirkus- Orel STU	12–17
Ceske Budejovice–MAFC	17–10
MAFC- Orel STU	16–15
Ceske Budejovice–Cirkus	17–20

#### **Final Ranking**

Ceske Budejovice	3	2	-	1	50–37	6	
MAFC	3	2	-	1	45–44	6	
Orel STU	3	1	-	2	39–44	3	
Cirkus	3	1	-	2	44–53	3	

c. First round matches in Castrop Rauxel (GER) on 4 and 5 October 2003 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Germany (Adler Rauxel), Portugal (CC de Oeiras), Catalonia (L'Autonoma) and France (Pierrelatte).

Pierrelatte- CC de Oeiras	6–23	
Adler Rauxel–L'Autonoma	17– 7	
Pierrelatte–L'Autonoma	10–15	
Adler Rauxel– CC de Oeiras	21–14	
L'Autonoma- CC de Oeiras	17–16	
Pierrelatte–Adler Rauxel	2–17	

#### **Final Ranking**

Adler Rauxel	3	3	-	0	55–23	9	
L'Autonoma	3	2	-	1	39–43	6	
CC de Oeiras	3	1	-	2	53–44	3	
Pierrelatte	3	0	-	3	18–55	-	

# d. Final round matches from 8–10 January 2004 in Delft (NED)

Pool A	Adler Rauxel–Invicta	15–16 (after golden goal)	
	Fortuna-MAFC	32–6	
	Fortuna-Invicta	20–10	
	Adler Rauxel–MAFC	18–14	
	Invicta-MAFC	22–14	
	Fortuna-Adler Rauxel	29–8	
Pool B	Coako Pudajaviao L'Autanama	11–11 (after extra time)	
	Ceske Budejovice–L'Autonoma	Ceske wins 17–14 after penalty shoot-out.	
	AKC/Café Bar–Prievidza	23–10	
	L'Autonoma-Prievidza	20–14	
	AKC/Café Bar–Ceske Budejovice	27–8	
	AKC/Café Bar–L'Autonoma	25–10	
	Ceske Budejovice–Prievidza	21–8	
Final Round	MAFC-Prievidza	8–10 (7th/8th place)	
	Adler Rauxel-L'Autonoma	10– 9 (5th/6th place)	
	Invicta-Ceske Budejovice	14–16 (3rd/4th place)	
	Fortuna–AKC/Café Bar	11–10 (after Golden Goal)	
		(IKF Europa Cup Final)	

#### 20. Saint-Etienne (France) 13-15 January 2005

- a. On the basis of the 2004 results admitted to the 2005 tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (Fortuna/Tempus), Belgium (AKC/Café Bar) and the Czech Republic (KC Budejovice). Also admitted the champion club of the host country (Pierrelatte).
- b. First round matches in Lisbon (POR) on 2 and 3 October 2004 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Portugal (NC Benfica), Germany (Grün-Weiss), Catalonia, Spain (L'Autonoma) and Great Britain (Mitcham).

Benfica-Grün-Weiss	17–12
L'Autonoma-Mitcham	12–15
Mitcham-Grün-Weiss	16–15
Benfica-L'Autonoma	6–19
Grün-Weiss-L'Autonoma	14–10
Benfica-Mitcham	15–9

#### **Final Ranking**

NC Benfica	3	2	-	1	38–40	6	
Mitcham	3	2	-	1	40–42	6	
Grün-Weiss	3	1	-	2	41–43	2	
L'Autonoma	3	1	-	2	41–35	2	

c. First round matches in Orel (RUS) on 2 and 3 October 2004 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Slovakia (SKK Prievidza), Hungary (MAFC), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Russia (Orel STU).

Prievidza-MAFC	9–16
AWF Warszawa- Orel STU	12–15
AWF Warszawa–MAFC	15–12
Prievidza- Orel STU	10–14
AWF Warszawa-Prievidza	12–15
MAFC- Orel STU	13–10

### Final ranking

MAFC	3	2	-	1	41–34	6	
Orel STU	3	2	-	1	39–35	6	
Prievidza	3	1	-	2	34–42	3	
Warszawa	3	1	-	2	39–42	3	

# d. Final round matches in Saint-Etienne (FRA) from 13–15 January 2005

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	*
Pool A	Mitcham-MAFC	15–10
	Pierrelatte–AKC/Café Bar	11–31
	AKC/Café Bar-MAFC	33– 9
	Pierrelatte–Mitcham	13–23
	AKC/Café Bar–Mitcham	28–12
	Pierrelatte-MAFC	13–24
Pool B	Fortuna/Tempus-Benfica	29–12
	Ceske Budejovice- Orel STU	18– 9
	Benfica- Orel STU	16–13
	Ceske Budejovice–Fortuna/Tempus	12–33
	Fortuna/Tempus- Orel STU	26–18
	Ceske Budejovice–Benfica	15–21
Final round	Pierrelatte- Orel STU	5–21 (7th/8th place)
	MAFC-Ceske Budejovice	13–16 (5th/6th place)
	Mitcham-Benfica	12–22 (3rd/4th place)
	AKC/Café Bar–Fortuna/Tempus	14–24 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

#### 21. Prievidza (Slovakia) 12-14 January 2006

- a. On the basis of the 2005 results admitted to the 2006 tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (PKC/Café Bar), Belgium (Riviera KC) and Portugal (NC Benfica). Also admitted the champion club of the host country (SKK Prievidza).
- b. First round matches in Warsaw (POL) on 1 and 2 October 2005 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of the Czech Republic (TJ Znojmo), Hungary (MAFC), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Russia (Orel STU).

TJ Znojmo-MAFC	15–10
Warszawa- Orel STU	13–17
Orel STU-TJ Znojmo	19–14
Warszawa-MAFC	13–17
Orel STU-MAFC	9–6
Warszawa-TJ Znojmo	15–18

#### Final ranking

Orel STU	3	3	-	-	45–33	9	
TJ Znojmo	3	2	-	1	47–44	6	
MAFC	3	1	-	2	33–37	3	
AWF Warszawa	3	0	-	3	41–52	0	

c. First round matches in Luxemburg (LUX) from 30 September until 2 October for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Luxemburg (Grasshoppers KT), Catalonia (CK Vacarisses), France (FJEP Bonson), Germany (Adler Rauxel) and Great Britain (Invicta Sharks).

Grasshoppers KT-CK Vacarisses	6–23
Grasshoppers KT- FJEP Bonson	8–15
Invicta Sharks –CK Vacarisses	13–11
Grasshoppers KT-Adler Rauxel	6–30
FJEP Bonson-CK Vacarisses	6–20
Invicta Sharks –Adler Rauxel	14–20
FJEP Bonson-Adler Rauxel	9–30
Grasshoppers KT-Invicta Sharks	6–17
CK Vacarisses-Adler Rauxel	11–20
FJEP Bonson–Invicta Sharks	11–22

### Final ranking

Adler Rauxel	4	4	-	-	100–40	12	
Invicta Sharks	4	3	-	1	66–48	10	
CK Vacarisses	4	2	-	2	65–45	6	
FJEP Bonson	4	1	-	3	41–80	3	
Grasshoppers KT		0	-	4	26–85	0	

# d. Final round matches in Prievidza (SVK) from 12-14 January 2006

Pool A	Riviera KC - NC Benfica	22–9
	Invicta Sharks – Orel STU	13–25
	Riviera KC – Invicta Sharks	22–7
	NC Benfica – Orel STU	11–16
	Invicta Sharks – NC Benfica	21–20
	Orel STU – Riviera KC	13–15
Pool B	Prievidza – PKC/Café Bar	6–32
	Adler Rauxel – TJ Znojmo	14–12
	Prievidza – TJ Znojmo	15–20
	Adler Rauxel – PKC/Café Bar	8–25
	Adler Rauxel – Prievidza	21–13
	PKC/Café Bar – TJ Znojmo	25–12
Final Round	NC Benfica – SKK Prievidza	15–13 (7th/8th place) ')
	Invicta Sharks – TJ Znojmo	13–16 (5th/6th place)
	Orel STU – Adler Rauxel	21–12 (3rd/4th place)
	Riviera KC – PKC/Café Bar	9–20 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

<sup>&#</sup>x27;) Because of the ineligibility of one of its players NC Benfica was later placed 8th and last in the event.

#### 22. Antwerp (Belgium) 11 - 13 January 2007

- a. On the basis of the 2006 results admitted to the 2007 tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (DOS '46), Belgium (Riviera KC), Russia (Orel STU) and Germany (Grün-Weiss).
- b. First round matches in Amiens (FRA) on 7 and 8 October 2006 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of France (KC Bonson), Great Britain (Mitcham KC), Luxemburg (Grasshoppers KT), Portugal (CC de Oeiras) and Catalonia (CK Vacarisses).

Mitcham – CC de Oeiras	12–13
Bonson – Grasshoppers	11–6
Vacarisses – Mitcham	8–10
Grasshoppers – CC de Oeiras	5 –20
Bonson – Vacarisses	7–19
Vacarisses – Grasshoppers	19–5
CC de Oeiras – Bonson	14–9
Grasshoppers – Mitcham	8–20
CC de Oeiras – Vacarisses	12–10
Mitcham – Bonson	15–8

#### **Final Ranking**

				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
CC de Oeiras	4	4	-	-	59 – 36	12	
Mitcham KC	4	3	-	1	57 – 37	9	
CK Vacarisses	4	2	-	2	56 – 34	6	
KC Bonson	4	1	-	3	35 – 54	3	
Grasshoppers KT	4	0	-	4	24 – 70	0	

c. First round matches in Trebon (CZE) on 7 and 8 October 2006 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of the Czech Republic (Ceske Budejovice), Hungary (Szentendre), Poland (AWF Warszawa) and Slovakia (SKK Prievidza)

Ceske Budejovice - Prievidza	17 - 13
Szentendre KK – AWF Warszawa	18 - 17
AWF Warszawa - Prievidza	14 - 13
Ceske Budejovice – Szentendre KK	12 - 15
Szentendre KK - Prievidza	12 - 9
Ceske Budejovice – AWF Warszawa	22 - 15

#### **Final Ranking**

Szentendre KK	3	3	-	-	45 – 38	9	
Ceske Budejovice	3	2	-	1	51 – 43	6	
AWF Warszawa	3	1	-	2	46 – 53	3	
SKK Prievidza	3	0	-	3	35 – 43	0	

# d. Final round matches in Antwerp (BEL) from 11–13 January 2007

Pool A	Riviera KC-Mitcham	21– 9
	Szentendre KK–Grün-Weiss	18–13
	Szentendre KK–Mitcham	10– 8
	Riviera KC-Grün-Weiss	19– 9
	Riviera KC-Szentendre KK	19– 7
	Mitcham–Grün-Weiss	11–11
Pool B	DOS '46- Orel STU	29–10
	Ceske Budejovice-CC de Oeiras	18–16
	Ceske Budejovice-DOS '46	6–29
	CC de Oeiras-Orel STU	17–11
	CC de Oeiras-DOS '46	15–31
	Ceske Budejovice-Orel STU	15–11
Final Round	Mitcham KC-Orel STU	7–12 (7th/8th place)
	Grün-Weiss-CC de Oeiras	10–15 (5th/6th place)
	Szentendre KK–Ceske Budejovice	14–20 (3rd/4th place)
	Riviera KC-DOS '46	10–19 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

## 23. Carcavelos (Portugal) 10 - 12 January 2008

- a. On the basis of the 2007 results admitted to the 2008 tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (DOS '46), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC) and Czech Republic (Ceske Budejovice). Also admitted the champion club of the host country (NC Benfica).
- b. First round matches in Castrop Rauxel (GER) on 6 and 7 October 2007 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Germany (Adler Rauxel), France (KC Bonson), England (Mitcham KC), Luxemburg (Grasshoppers KT), Scotland (Edinburgh), Italy (Evan Salus) and Catalonia (CK Vacarisses).

Adler Rauxel – Grasshoppers	13 - 3
Bonson FJEP – Evan Salus	18 - 3
Edinburgh – Vacarissses	4 – 15
Mitcham – Grasshoppers	10 - 3
Adler Rauxel – Evan Salus	19 - 3
Bonson FJEP – Vacarisses	4 - 14
Edinburgh – Mitcham	3 - 22
Grasshoppers – Evan Salus	23 - 6
Adler Rauxel – Vacarisses	6 - 5
Bonson FJEP – Mitcham	7 - 14
<b>-</b>	= 0 / ft 0 LL 0 LV
Grasshoppers – Edinburgh	7 - 8 (after Golden Goal)
Grasshoppers – Edinburgh  Evan Salus – Vacarisses	7 - 8 (after Golden Goal) 5 - 22
Evan Salus – Vacarisses	5 - 22
Evan Salus – Vacarisses Adler Rauxel – Mitcham	5 - 22 7 – 11
Evan Salus – Vacarisses  Adler Rauxel – Mitcham  Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh	5 - 22 7 – 11 7 - 5
Evan Salus – Vacarisses  Adler Rauxel – Mitcham  Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh  Mitcham – Vacarisses	5 - 22 7 - 11 7 - 5 10 - 3
Evan Salus – Vacarisses  Adler Rauxel – Mitcham  Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh  Mitcham – Vacarisses  Edinburgh - Evan Salus	5 - 22 7 - 11 7 - 5 10 - 3 10 - 8
Evan Salus – Vacarisses  Adler Rauxel – Mitcham  Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh  Mitcham – Vacarisses  Edinburgh - Evan Salus  Adler Rauxel – Bonson FJEP	5 - 22 7 - 11 7 - 5 10 - 3 10 - 8 18 - 5
Evan Salus – Vacarisses  Adler Rauxel – Mitcham  Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh  Mitcham – Vacarisses  Edinburgh - Evan Salus  Adler Rauxel – Bonson FJEP  Grasshoppers – Vacarisses	5 - 22 7 - 11 7 - 5 10 - 3 10 - 8 18 - 5 3 - 9
Evan Salus – Vacarisses  Adler Rauxel – Mitcham  Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh  Mitcham – Vacarisses  Edinburgh - Evan Salus  Adler Rauxel – Bonson FJEP  Grasshoppers – Vacarisses  Mitcham – Evan Salus	5 - 22 7 - 11 7 - 5 10 - 3 10 - 8 18 - 5 3 - 9 27 - 7

## **Final Ranking**

	matches	wins	draw	loss	goals	points
Mitcham	6	6	-	-	94 – 30	18
Adler Rauxel	6	5	-	1	83 – 32	15
Vacarisses	6	4	-	2	68 – 32	12
Bonson FJEP	6	3	-	3	47 – 59	9
Edinburgh	6	2	-	4	35 – 79	5
Grasshoppers	6	1	-	5	44-52	4
Evan Salus	6	0	-	6	32-119	0

c. First round matches in Prievidza (SVK) on 6 and 7 October 2007 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Hungary (Szentendre KK), Poland (AWF Warszawa), Russia (Orel STU), Greece (Thessaloniki) and Slovakia (SKK Prievidza).

Szentendre – Warszawa	12 - 9
Orel STU- Thessaloniki	26 - 6
Prievidza – Warszawa	17 - 16
Szentendre – Orel STU	10 - 13
Prievidza – Thessaloniki	21 - 6
Warszawa – Thessaloniki	21 - 8
Szentendre – Prievidza	12 - 10
Orel STU - Warszawa	17 - 7
Szentendre – Thessaloniki	17 - 3
Prievidza – STU Orel	13 - 11

#### **Final Ranking**

	matches	win	draw	loss	goals	points
Orel STU	4	3	-	1	67 – 36	9
Prievidza	4	3	-	1	61 – 45	9
Szentendre KK	4	3	-	1	51 – 34	9
Warszawa	4	1	-	3	52 – 54	3
Thessaloniki	4	0	-	4	23 – 85	0

d. Final round matches in Carcavelos (Portugal) from 10 - 12 January 2008

Pool A Mitcham – Szentendre KK		16 – 12		
	Boeckenberg KC – Benfica	19 – 10		
	Mitcham – Boeckenberg KC	5 – 18		
	Benfica – Szentendre KK	16 - 15 (after Golden Goal)		
	Boeckenberg KC – Szentendre KK	25 - 8		
	Benfica – Mitcham	12 – 13 (after Golden Goal)		
Pool B	DOS '46 – Prievidza	33 - 7		
	Adler Rauxel – Ceske Budejovice	13 – 12		
	DOS '46 – Adler Rauxel	22 – 8		
	Prievidza – Ceske Budejovice	11 – 13		
	Ceske Budejovice – DOS '46	8 - 32		
	Adler Rauxel – Prievidza	21 - 19		
Final Round	Szentendre KK – Prievidza	21 – 11 (7th/8th place)		
	Benfica – Ceske Budejovice	21 - 14 (5th/6th place)		
	Adler Rauxel – Mitcham	8 - 11 (3rd/4th place)		
	DOS '46 – Boeckenberg KC	19 – 12 (IKF Europa Cup Final)		

## 24. Koog aan de Zaan (The Netherlands) 21 - 24 January 2009

- a. On the basis of the 2008 results admitted to the 2009 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (Koog Zaandijk), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), England (Trojans) and Germany (Adler Rauxel).
- b. First round matches in Luxembourg (LUX) from 3 5 October 2008 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of France (KC Bonson), Luxemburg (KCL Ro'de Le'w), Scotland (Sint Andrews University), Wales (Cardiff City), Portugal (CC de Oeiras), Russia (Orel STU) and Catalonia (CK Vacarisses).

KCL Ro'de Le'w – Orel STU	1 - 17
CK Vacarisses – Sint Andrews University	20 - 3
Cardiff Cirty - CC de Oeiras	5 – 15
Bonson - Sint Andrews University	8 - 7
Cardiff City – Orel STU	3 - 21
KCL Ro'de Le'w – CC de Oeiras	7 - 17
Bonson – CK Vacarisses	5 - 14
Cardiff City – Sint Andrews University	6 – 5 (after Golden Goal)
CK Vacarisses – KCL Ro'de Le'w	10 - 3
CC de Oeiras - Bonson	19 - 2
Orel STU – Sint Andrews University	23 - 3
Cardiff Clty – CK Vacarisses	5 - 21
KCL Ro'de Le'w - Bonson	5 - 7
CC de Oeiras – Orel STU	13 - 7
Sint Andrews University – KCL Ro'de Le'w	6 - 13
CC de Oeiras – CK Vacarisses	5 - 10
Orel STU – Bonson	17 - 3
Cardiff City – KCL Ro'de Le'w	8 - 6
Sint Andrews University – CC de Oeiras	1 - 20
Orel STU – CK Vacarisses	19 - 11
Cardiff City – Bonson	7 - 9

#### **Final Ranking**

	matches	win	draw; normal time	loss	goals	points
Orel STU	6	5	-	1	104 – 34	15
CC de Oeiras	6	5	-	1	89 – 32	15
CK Vacarisses	6	5	-	1	86 – 40	15
Bonson	6	3	-	3	34 – 69	9
Cardiff City	6	2	1	4	34 – 77	5
KCL Ro'de Le'w	6	1	-	5	35 – 65	3
Sint Andrews University	6	0	1	6	25 - 90	1

a. First round matches in Budapest (HUN) on 4 and 5 October 2008 for two places in the final round between the champion clubs of Hungary (Szentendre KK), Poland (Mega Sports Warszawa), Greece (Galaxias KC Athens), Serbia (Stari Grad), Czech Republic (TJ Znojmo MS YMCA) and Slovakia (SKK Prievidza).

Galaxias KC Athens - TJ Znojmo MS YMCA	4 - 19
SKK Prievidza – Szentendre KK	7 - 15
Mega Sports Warszawa - Stari Grad	13 - 7
Galaxias KC Athens – SKK Prievidza	4 - 25
Mega Sports Warszawa - TJ Znojmo MS YMCA	7 - 14
Stari Grad – Szentendre KK	11 - 16
Galaxias KC Athens – Mega Sports Warszawa	2 - 10
Stari Grad - SKK Prievidza	5 - 14
Szentendre KK – TJ Znojmo MS YMCA	10 - 12
Galaxias KC Athens – Stari Grad	8 - 11
Szentendre KK - Mega Sports Warszawa	13 - 9
TJ Znojmo MS YMCA - SKK Prievidza	8 - 4
Galaxias KC Athens – Szentendre KK	8 - 11
TJ Znojmo MS YMCA – Stari Grad	23 - 11
SKK Prievidza - Mega Sports Warszawa	13 - 6
	·····

## **Final Ranking**

	matches	wins	draw; normal time	loss	goals	points
TJ Znojmo MS YMCA	5	5	-	0	76 – 36	15
Szentendre KK	5	4	-	1	65 – 42	12
SKK Prievidza	5	3	-	2	63 – 38	9
Mega Sports Warszawa	5	2	-	3	45 – 49	6
Stari Grad	5	1	-	4	45 – 74	3
Galaxias KC Athens	5	0	-	0	21 - 76	0

d. Final round matches in Koog aan de Zaan (The Netherlands) from 21 - 24 January 2009

Pool A	Adler Rauxel – Orel STU	9 – 25
	Boeckenberg KC – TJ Znojmo MS YMCA	29 – 6
	Boeckenberg KC – Adler Rauxel	23 - 12
	TJ Znojmo MS YMCA – Orel STU	13 - 12
	Boeckenberg KC – Orel STU	20 - 9
	TJ Znojmo MS YMCA – Adler Rauxel	17 – 15

Pool B	CC de Oeiras – Szentendre KK	18 – 14
	Koog Zaandijk - Trojans	22 – 9
	Szentendre KK – Trojans	16 - 15
	Koog Zaandijk – CC de Oeiras	28 - 9
	CC de Oeiras - Trojans	20 - 16
	Koog Zaandijk – Szentendre KK	30 - 7
Final Round	Trojans – Adler Rauxel	13 – 14 (7th/8th place)
	Szentendre KK – Orel STU	16 – 15 (5th/6th place)
	CC de Oeiras – TJ Znojmo MS YMCA	13 – 12 (after Golden Goal)
		(3rd/4th place)
	Koog Zaandijk – Boeckenberg KC	22 – 18 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

### 25. Herentals (Belgium) 20 - 23 January 2010

- a. On the basis of the 2009 results admitted to the 2010 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (DOS '46/Engeldot), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC) and Portugal (CC de Oeiras).
- b. First round matches in Kocealli (TUR) from 3 4 October 2009 for 2 places in the final round between the champion clubs of Turkey (Kocealli), Scotland (Sint Andrews University), Catalonia (CK Vacarisses), Germany (Adler Rauxel) and England (Trojans).

Kocaelli - Sint Andrews University	13-4
CK Vacarisses - KV Adler Rauxel	13-14 (after Golden Goal)
Trojans - Sint Andrews University	22-7
Kocaelli - KV Adler Rauxel	6-16
Trojans - CK Vacarisses	13- 9
Kocaelli - CK Vacarisses	8-11
Trojans - KV Adler Rauxel	8- 9
CK Vacarisses - Sint Andrews University	14- 8
Kocaelli - Trojans	6-15
KV Adler Rauxel - Sint Andrews University	11- 3

#### Final Ranking 1st round A

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
KV Adler Rauxel	1	4	11	50	30	20
Trojans	2	4	9	58	31	27
CK Vacarisses	3	4	7	47	43	4
Kocaeli University	4	4	3	33	46	-13
Sint Andrews University	5	4	0	22	60	-38

c. First round matches in Trebon (CZE) on 3 and 4 October 2009 for 3 places in the final round between the champion clubs of Czech Republic (Ceske Budejovice), Hungary (Szentendre KK), Russia (Orel USTU), France (COK Guilherand Granges). The teams of Greece (Aristotelis Serres) and Poland (Mega Sports Warszawa) had withdrawn.

COK Guilherand Granges – Szentendre KK	3 – 20
Ceské Budejovice – Orel USTU	15 – 21
Orel USTU - COK Guilherand Granges	36 – 6
Ceské Budejovice – Szentendre KK	13 – 19
Ceské Budejovice – COK Guilherand Granges	21 - 6
Orel USTU – Szentendre KK	22 – 19

# Final Ranking 1st round B

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
Orel STU	1	3	9	79	40	+39
Szentendre KK	2	3	6	62	42	+20
Ceské Budejovice	3	3	3	49	46	+3
COK Guilherand Granges	4	3	0	19	81	-62

d.	Final round matches in Herentals (Belg	lgium) 20 - 23 January 2010	
Ces	ke Budejovice – Orel STU	17 - 19	
KV	Adler Rauxel – Szentendre KK	21 - 13	
DOS	S '46/Engeldot – CC de Oeiras	45 - 15	
Boe	ckenberg KC – Trojans	31 - 12	
CC	de Oeiras – Szentendre KK	19 - 17	
Troj	ans – Orel STU	18 - 23	
Boe	ckenberg KC – Ceske Budejovice	32 - 10	
DOS	S '46/Engeldot – KV Adler Rauxel	30 - 04	
Ces	ke Budejovice – Trojans	19 - 12	
KV	Adler Rauxel – CC de Oeiras	19 - 13	
DOS	S '46/Engeldot – Szentendre KK	42 - 08	
Boe	ckenberg KC – Orel STU	40 - 13	
Troj	ans – Szentendre KK	20 - 15	
Ces	ke Budejovice – CC de Oeiras	25 - 19	
Ore	I STU – KV Adler Rauxel	12 - 13	
Boe	ckenberg KC – DOS '46/Engeldot	20 - 27 (IKF Europa Cup Fina	al)

# Final Ranking 2010

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
DOS '46/Engeldot	1	4	12	144	47	97
Boeckenberg KC	2	4	9	123	62	61
KV Adler Rauxel	3	4	9	57	68	-11
Orel OSTU	4	4	6	67	88	-21
Ceské Budejovice	5	4	6	71	82	-11
CC de Oeiras	6	4	3	66	106	-40
Trojans	7	4	3	62	88	-26
Szentendre KK	8	4	0	53	102	-49

## 26. Budapest (Hungary) 19 - 22 January 2011

- a. On the basis of the 2010 results direct admitted to the 2011 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (Koog Zaandijk), Belgium (Royal Scaldis S.C.) and host Hungary (Szentendre KK).
- b. First round matches in Wroclaw (POL) from 24 26 September 2010 for 5 places in the final round between the champion clubs of Turkey (Koceali University), Scotland (Sint Andrews University), Catalonia (CK Vacarisses), Germany (KV Adler Rauxel), Slovakia (SKK Prievidza Dolphins), Poland (AZS Wroclaw), France (Bonson FJEP), Czech Republic (Ceské Budejovice), Portugal (CC Oeiras) and England (Trojans).

CK Vacarisses - St Andrew University	25 - 5
KV Adler Rauxel - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	9 - 7
Trojans - AZS Wroclaw	18 - 7
Bonson FJEP - Kocaeli University	11 - 12
AZS Wroclaw - St Andrews University	23 - 4
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Kocaeli University	12 - 10
Ceské Budejovice - CK Vacarisses	15 - 16
CC Oeiras - Bonson FJEP	21 - 6
St Andrews University - Trojans	2 - 27
Kocaeli University - KV Adler Rauxel	7 - 19
CK Vacarisses - AZS Wroclaw	20 - 10
Bonson FJEP - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	5 - 9
CC Oeiras - KV Adler Rauxel	13 - 9
Ceské Budejovice - KV Adler Rauxel	11 - 10
CC Oeiras - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	13 - 9
Ceské Budejovice - AZS Wroclaw	18 - 6
Trojans - CK Vacarisses	9 - 11
CC Oeiras - Kocaeli University	19 - 8
KV Adler Rauxel - Bonson FJEP	18 - 6
Ceské Budejovice - St Andrews University	21 - 3
Trojans - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	16 - 7

## Final Ranking 1st round 2011 Pool A

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
CK Vacarisses	1	4	12	72	39	33
Ceské Budejovice	4	4	8	65	35	30
Trojans	5	4	7	80	38	32
AZS Wroclaw	7	4	3	46	60	-14
Sint Andrews University	9	4	0	14	96	-82

### Final Ranking 1st round 2011 Pool B

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
CC Oeiras	2	4	12	66	32	34
KV Adler Rauxel	3	4	9	55	33	22
SKK Prievidza Dolphins	6	4	6	44	53	-9
Kocaeli University	8	4	3	37	61	-24
Bonson FJEP	10	4	0	28	60	-32

First two teams of each pool have qualified directly for the final round. The winner of the thirth place of the two pools: Slovakia (SKK Prievidza Dolphins) versus England (Trojans) have qualified as well. England (Trojans) won the qualification.

Qualified for the IKF Europa Cup final round 2011 in Budapest (HUN):

CK VACARISSES - CESKE BUDEJOVICE - CLUBE CORFEBOL DE OEIRAS - ADLER RAUXEL - TROJANS

C.	Final round	matches i	in Budanest	(Hungary)	19 - 22 Januar	v 2011
0.	i illiai loalla	matorioo	III Daaapoot	(i idiigai y /	TO LL Gariagi	, , .

c. Final round matches in Budapest (Hungary)	) 19 - 22 January 2011
Koog Zaandijk - KV Adler Rauxel	27 - 13
CK Vacarisses - Trojans	17 - 19
Szentendre KK - CC Oeiras	16 - 14
Royal Scaldis S.C Ceské Budejovice	37 - 17
Trojans - KV Adler Rauxel	26 - 21
Royal Scaldis S.C CC Oeiras	22 - 6
Koog Zaandijk - CK Vacarisses	36 - 9
Szentendre KK - Ceské Budejovice	12 - 18
Koog Zaandijk - Trojans	31 - 10
CC Oeiras - Ceské Budejovice	15 - 19
Szentendre KK – Royal Scaldis S.C.	6 - 26
CK Vacarisses - KV Adler Rauxel	19 - 22
CC Oeiras - CK Vacarisses	19 - 15
Szentendre KK - KV Adler Rauxel	23 - 12
Ceské Budejovice - Trojans	19 - 18
Royal Scaldis S.C Koog Zaandijk	23 - 33 (IKF Europa Cup Final)
	····•

	Country	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
Koog Zaandijk	NED	1	4	12	127	55	72
Royal Scaldis S.C.	BEL	2	4	9	108	62	46
Ceské Budejovice	CZE	3	4	9	73	82	-9
Trojans	ENG	4	4	3	73	88	-15
Szentendre KK	HUN	5	4	6	57	70	-13
KV Adler Rauxel	GER	6	4	3	68	95	-27
CC Oeiras	POR	7	4	3	54	72	-18
CK Vacarisses	CAT	8	4	0	60	96	-36

### 27. Warsaw (Poland) 17 - 21 January 2012

- a. On the basis of the 2011 results direct admitted to the 2012 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (TOP/Wereldtickets.nl), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), Catalonia (CK Vallparadis / Assessoria), Hungary (Szentendre), Germany (Adler Rauxel), Czech Republic (KOLIN), Portugal (NC Benfica, England (Trojans), Russia (Orel OSTU / State University HSS) and host Poland (Mega Sports Warszawa).
- b. First round matches in Prievidza (SVK) from 23 25 September 2011 for 2 places in the final round were played between the champion clubs of Turkey (Ankara University Sports Club), Slovakia (SKK Prievidza Dolphins), France (Bonson FJEP), Scotland (Edinburgh), Italy (A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova) and Serbia (ZEMUN Beograd).

SKK Prievidza Dolphins - A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova	20 -4
Ankara University Sports Club - Edinburgh	16 - 5
ZEMUN Beograd - Bonson FJEP	9 - 10
A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova - Edinburgh	8 - 16
ZEMUN Beograd - Ankara University Sports Club	12 - 11
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Bonson FJEP	10 - 11
A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova - ZEMUN Beograd	9 - 18
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Edinburgh	15 - 3
Ankara University Sports Club - Bonson FJEP	17 - 6
ZEMUN Beograd - Edinburgh	20 - 11
Bonson FJEP - A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova	9 - 5
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Ankara University Sports Club	19 - 10
Edinburgh - Bonson FJEP	4 - 17
A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova - Ankara University Sports Club	7 - 15
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - ZEMUN Beograd	19 -11

### **Final Ranking First Round**

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
SKK Prievidza Dolphins	1	5	12	83	39	44
Bonson FJEP	2	5	11	53	45	8
Ankara University Sports Club	3	5	10	69	49	20
ZEMUN Beograd	4	5	9	70	59	11
Edinburgh	5	5	3	39	76	-37
A.S.D. EvanSalus Club Padova	6	5	0	32	78	-46

First two teams qualified directly for the final round in Warsaw (POL).

Slovakia (SKK Prievidza Dolphins), France (Bonson FJEP). Due to the withdrawal of the Hungarian champion – Szentendre – the IKF Competition Committee invited the number 3: Ankara University Sports Club (Turkey).

c. Final round korfball matches in <b>Warsaw</b> (Poland) 17 - 21	January 2012
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - SKK Prievidza	19 - 15
NC Benfica - Bonson FJEP	36 - 6
Trojans - Ankara University Sports Club	19 - 10
Mega Sports Warszawa - Orel OSTU / State University HSS	18 - 27
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Ankara University Sports Club	18 - 14
Mega Sports Warszawa - Bonson FJEP	26 - 8
TOP/Wereldtickets.nl - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	40 - 14
Boeckenberg KC - Orel OSTU / State University HSS	34 - 18
KOLIN - NC Benfica	16 - 19
KV Adler Rauxel - Trojans	20 - 22
Ankara University Sports Club – Bonson FJEP	16 - 11
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Mega Sports Warszawa	13 - 17
KOLIN - Orel OSTU / State University HSS	24 - 16
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - KV Adler Rauxel	20 - 17
NC Benfica - Boeckenberg KC	15 - 34
TOP/Wereldtickets.nl - Trojans	33 - 18
Orel OSTU / State University HSS- KV Adler Rauxel	21 - 24
KOLIN - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	20 - 23
NC Benfica - Trojans	16 - 18
Boeckenberg KC - TOP/Wereldtickets.nl	19 - 22 (IKF Europa Cup Final)

	Country	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
TOP/Wereldtickets.nl	NED	1	3	9	95	51	44
Boeckenberg KC	BEL	2	3	6	87	55	32
Trojans	ENG	3	4	9	77	79	-2
NC Benfica	POR	4	4	6	86	74	12
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	CAT	5	4	9	76	92	-16
KOLIN	CZE	6	3	3	60	58	2
KV Adler Rauxel	GER	7	3	3	61	63	-2
Orel OSTU / State University HSS	RUS	8	4	3	82	100	-18
Mega Sports Warszawa	POL	9	3	3	61	48	13
SKK Prievidza Dolphins	SVK	10	3	3	46	50	-4
Ankara University Sports Club	TUR	11	3	3	40	48	-8
Bonson FJEP	FRA	12	3	0	25	78	-53

### 28. Budapest (Hungary) 16 - 19 January 2013

- a. On the basis of the 2012 results direct admitted to the 2013 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (KZ/Hiltex), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), Catalonia (Club Esportiu Vilanova i La Geltru), Czech Republic (Ceske Budejovice), England (Trojans KC), Germany (Schweriner Korfball Club e.V. '67), Poland (MegaSports Warsawa), Portugal (NC Benfica), Russia (Orel STU State University-HSS) and host Hungary (Szentendre Korfball Klub).
- b. First round matches in Montrond les Bains (FRA) from 14 16 September 2012 for 2 places in the final round were played among the champion clubs of France (FJEP Bonson), Scotland (St. Andrews University), Serbia (Beograd Korfball Club), Turkey (Nazilli Belediyesi), Wales (Cardiff City).

5-11
12-8
13-8
4-13
12-10
17-6
6-12
16-9
6-17
14-6

## **Final Ranking First Round**

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
Beograd Korfball Club	1	4	6	53	30	23
Bonson FJEP	2	4	9	54	31	23
Nazilli Belediye	3	4	6	46	42	4
Cardiff City	4	4	3	27	44	-17
St Andrews University	5	4	0	25	58	-33

First two teams qualified directly for the final round in Budapest (HUN): Serbia (Beograd Korfball Club), France (Bonson FJEP).

# b. Final round korfball matches in **Budapest** (Hungary) 16 - 19 January 2013

CEVG (CE Vilanova i la Geltrú ) / Bonson FJEP	28 - 10
Schweriner KC e.V. '67 / Mega Sports Warszawa	22 - 7
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL) / Beograd Korfball Club	32 - 17
Szentendre KK / Orel OSTU / State University HSS	22 - 24
Mega Sports Warszawa / Beograd Korfball Club	18 - 17
Szentendre KK / Bonson FJEP [	18 - 14
Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex / Orel OSTU / State University HSS	43 - 14
Boeckenberg KC / Schweriner KC e.V. '67	28 - 15
Trojans / Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL)	15 - 16
NC Benfica / CEVG (CE Vilanova i la Geltrú)	ac aa
Trojans / Schweriner KC e.V. '67	18 - 17
Orel OSTU / State University HSS / CEVG (CE Vilanova i la Geltrú )	28 - 21
Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex / NC Benfica	33 - 14
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL) / Boeckenberg KC	19 - 39
Beograd Korfball Club / Bonson FJEP	18 - 17
Mega Sports Warszawa / Szentendre KK	20 - 24
Schweriner KC e.V. '67 / CEVG (CE Vilanova i la Geltrú )	17 - 16
Trojans / Orel OSTU / State University HSS	16 - 34
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL) / NC Benfica	18 – 27 (BRONZE MEDAL MATCH)
Boeckenberg KC / Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex	18 - 20 (FINAL IKF Europa Cup)

	Country	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
Koog Zaandijk/Hiltex	NED	1	3	9	96	46	50
Boeckenberg KC	BEL	2	3	3	85	54	31
NC Benfica	POR	3	3	3	67	73	-6
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL)	CZE	4	4	3	85	98	-13
Orel OSTU / State University HSS	RUS	5	4	9	100	102	-2
Trojans	ENG	6	3	3	49	67	-18
Schweriner KC e.V. '67	GER	7	4	6	71	69	2
CEVG (CE Vilanova i la Geltrú )	CAT	8	4	3	87	81	6
Szentendre KK	HUN	9	3	3	64	58	6
Mega Sports Warszawa	POL	10	3	3	45	63	-18
Beograd Korfball Club	SRB	11	3	2	52	67	-15
Bonson FJEP	FRA	12	3	1	41	64	-23

### 29. Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 15 - 18 January 2014

- a. On the basis of the 2013 results direct admitted to the 2014 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (PKC/Hagero), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), Portugal (NC Benfica ) Czech Republic (VKC KOLIN), Russia (Orel OSTU / State University HSS), England (Trojans), Germany (SC Pegasus), Catalonia (Barcelona KC), Hungary (1908 SZAC KSE),
- b First round match in Belgrade (SRB) on 23 November 2013 for 1 place in the final round were played betweenthe champion clubs of Serbia (Korfball Club ZEMUN Beograd) and Turkey (Marmara).

First round matches in Croydon (ENG) on 23 November 2013 for 2 places in the final round were played between the champion clubs of France (Bonson FJEP), Scotland (Edinburgh) and Wales (Cardiff City)

### Match in Belgrade (SRB) on 23 November 2013

Korfball Club Zenum – Marmara	14 - 13
Winner qualified directly for the final round in Papendrecht (NED): Serbia (Korfball Club Zenum)	

#### Matches in Croydon (ENG) on 23 November 2013

Cardiff City - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	9 - 12
Bonson FJEP - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	10 - 4
Cardiff City - Bonson FJEP	3 - 16

#### Final Ranking First Round b

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
Bonson FJEP (FRA)	1	2	6	26	7	19
Edinburgh City Korfball Club (SCO)	2	2	3	16	19	-3
Cardiff City (WAL)	4	2	0	12	28	-16

Final ranking: 1. Bonson FJEP (FRA), 2. Edinburgh City Korfball Club (SCO), 3. Cardiff City (WAL)

First two teams qualified directly for the final round in Papendrecht (NED): France (Bonson FJEP), Scotland (Edinburgh City Korfball Club)

# a. Final round korfball matches in Papendrecht (The Netherlands) 15 - 18 January 2014

SC Pegasus - 1908 SZAC KSE	31 – 10
Barcelona KC - ZEMUN	31 - 10
Trojans - Edinburg City	37 - 4
Orel OSTU / State University HSS - Bonson FJEP	32 - 11
ZEMUN - Edinburg City	17 – 10
1908 SZAC KSE - Bonson FJEP	26 - 15
KOLIN - Orel OSTU / State University HSS	14 - 13
NC Benfica - Trojans	15 - 8
Boeckenberg KC - Barcelona KC	40 - 15
PKC/Hagero - SC Pegasus	46 - 12
Edinburg City - Bonson FJEP	5 - 27
ZEMUN - 1908 SZAC KSE	13 - 23
Barcelona KC - Trojans	23 - 24
Orel OSTU / State University HSS - SC Pegasus	23 – 30
Boeckenberg KC - NC Benfica	33 - 17
KOLIN - PKC/Hagero	17 – 41
Barcelona KC - Orel OSTU / State University HSS	30 – 23
Trojans - SC Pegasus	18 – 24
KOLIN - NC Benfica	10 – 24 (BRONZE MEDAL MATCH)
PKC/Hagero - Boeckenberg KC	31 - 27 (FINAL IKF Europa Cup)
r Normagero - boeckemberg No	31-21 (LINAL INF EUIOPA CUP)

	Country	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
PKC/Hagero	NED	1	3	9	118	56	62
Boeckenberg KC	BEL	2	3	6	100	47	43
NC Benfica	POR	3	3	6	50	51	-1
KOLIN	CZE	4	3	3	41	78	-37
SC Pegasus	GER	5	4	9	97	97	0
Trojans	ENG	6	4	6	87	66	21
Barcelona KC	CAT	7	4	6	99	97	2
State University HSS	RUS	8	4	3	91	85	6
1908 SZAC KSE	HUN	9	3	6	59	60	-1
KC ZEMUN	SRB	10	3	3	41	64	-23
Bonson FJEP	FRA	11	3	3	53	63	-10
Edinburgh City Korfball Club	SCO	12	3	0	19	81	-62

## 30. Tielen / Herentals (Belgium) 14 - 17 January 2015

Due to the unavailability of a venue for a first round, qualification event the IKF Competitions Committee and the IKF Europe Competitions Working Group decided on the participants based on the IKF Europa Cup 2014 final ranking in combination with the IKF ranking from 2014.

The matches in the IKF Europa Cup 2015 final round were:

Trojans – Kocaeli University	17 – 8
Kocaeli University - Edinburgh Mavericks	11 – 7
Edinburgh Mavericks – Trojans	4 – 17
Schweriner KC – Vallparadis	20 – 21
Schweriner KC – Bonson FJEP	18 – 9
Bonson FJEP – Vallparadis	6 – 33
Edinburgh Mavericks – Bonson FJEP	11 – 16
NC Benfica – Vallparadis	22 – 18
Royal Scaldis – Schweriner KC	25 – 15
Brno KK – Trojans	19 – 18
TOP/Quoratio – Kocaeli University	39 – 9
Bonson FJEP – Edinburgh Mavericks	17 – 9
Vallparadis – Kocaeli University	26 – 10
NC Benfica – Royal Scaldis	17 – 23
Trojans – Schweriner KC	21 – 20
TOP/Quoratio – Brno KK	37 – 15
Schweriner KC – Kocaeli University	22- 13
Trojans – Vallparadis	21 – 22
NC Benfica – Brno KK	21 – 17 (Bronze medal match)
Royal Scaldis – TOP/Quoratio	17 – 31 (IKF EUROPA CUP FINAL)

Rank		Country	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
1	TOP/Quoratio	NED	3	9	107	41	66
2	Royal Scaldis	BEL	3	6	65	63	2
3	NC Benfica	POR	3	3	60	58	2
4	Brno KK	CZE	3	3	51	76	-25
5	Vallparadis	CAT	5	11	120	79	41
6	Trojans	ENG	5	9	94	73	21
7	Schweriner KC	GER	4	4	95	89	6
8	Kocaeli University	TUR	5	3	51	111	-60
9	Bonson FJEP	FRA	4	3	48	71	-23
10	Edinburgh Mavericks	SCO	4	0	31	61	-30

#### 31. Budapest (Hungary) 13 - 16 January 2016 Final Round (50th edition)

- a) On the basis of the 2015 results direct admitted to the 2016 final round tournament the champion clubs of the Netherlands (PKC/SWK Groep), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), Catalonia (CK Vallparadis), Czech Republic (Brno KK), England (Trojans KC), Germany (SG Pegasus), Portugal (NC Benfica), Turkey (Marmara University Sport Club), France (Bonson FJEP)
- b) First round matches in Budapest (Hungary) from 26 27 September 2015 for 3 places in the final IKF ECup 2017 played among the champion clubs of ARM (Vardananq), SCO (*Edinburgh City Korfball Club*), HUN (*Szentendre KK*), POL (*UKK WUM Warszawa*), RUS (*State University HSS*) and SVK (*SKK Prievidza Dolphins*)

Budapest (Hungary) 26 - 27 September 2015 First Round results:

State University HSS - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	16 -6
UKK WUM Warszawa – Vardananq	12-8
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	19 -11
Vardananq - Szentendre KK	5 -20
Edinburgh City Korfball Club - State University HSS	7-28
Szentendre KK - UKK WUM Warszawa	15 – 11
Edinburgh City Korfball Club – Vardananq	18 – 9
State University HSS - UKK WUM Warszawa	13 -14
Szentendre KK - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	11- 6
Vardananq - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	6 – 15
State University HSS - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	21 – 14
UKK WUM Warszawa - Szentendre KK	7 - 16

### **Final Ranking First Round**

	Rank	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
Szentendre KK	1	4	12	62	29	33
UKK WUM Warszawa	2	4	6	58	51	7
State University HSS -	3	4	9	78	41	37
SKK Prievidza Dolphins	4	4	3	45	59	-14
Edinburgh City Korfball Club	5	4	6	51	62	-11
Vardananq	6	4	0	27	29	-52

First tree teams qualified directly for the final round in Budapest (HUN): HUN (Szentendre KK), POL (UKK WUM Warszawa), RUS (State University HSS).

# c. The matches in the IKF Europa Cup 2016 final round were:

Marmara University Sport Club - Bonson FJEP	19 – 13
Trojans – UKK WUM Warszawa	42 – 23
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria – 1908 SZAC KSE	19 – 17
Szentendre KK – SC Pegasus	17 – 21
Bonson FJEP - UKK WUM Warszawa	17 - 26
Brno KK - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	23 - 15
NC Benfica – Trojans	18 - 15
Boeckenberg KC - Marmara University Sport Club	28 - 6
PKC/SWK Groep - SG Pegasus	44 - 13
Szentendrei Korfball Klub - 1908 SZAC KSE	16 – 17 after Golden Goal
Bonson FJEP - 1908 SZAC KSE	13 -23
UKK WUM Warszawa - Szentendrei Korfball Klub	20 -19
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - SG Pegasus	23 -18
Trojans - Marmara University Sport Club	30 -17
Brno KK - PKC/SWK Groep	15 - 40
NC Benfica - Boeckenberg KC	19 - 32
SG Pegasus - Marmara University Sport Club	24 - 13
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - Trojans	22 - 21
Brno KK - NC Benfica	14 - 22 (Bronze medal match)
PKC/SWK Groep - Boeckenberg KC	31 – 21 (IKF EUROPA CUP FINAL)

Rank		Country	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
1	PKC/SWK Groep	NED	3	9	115	49	65
2	Boeckenberg KC	BEL	3	6	81	56	25
3	NC Benfica	POR	3	6	59	61	-2
4	Brno KK	CZE	3	3	52	77	-25
5	CK Vallparadis	CAT	4	9	79	79	0
6	Trojans KC	ENG	4	6	108	80	28
7	SG Pegasus	GER	4	6	76	97	-21
8	Marmara University Sport Club	TUR	4	3	55	95	-40
9	UKK WUM Warszawa	POL	3	6	69	78	-9
10	Szentendrei Korfball Klub	HUN	3	1	52	58	-6
11	Bonson FJEP	FRA	3	0	43	68	-25
12	1908 SZAC KSE *	HUN	3	5	57	48	9

 $<sup>^*</sup>$  = Out of Competition . Has at the last moment replaced the team of  $State\ University\ HSS$  to complete the number of participants.

### 32. Sassenheim (The Netherlands) 12 - 14 January 2017 Final Round

- a) On the basis of the 2016 results direct admitted to the 2017 final round tournament the champion clubs of The Netherlands (TOP/Quoratio), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), England (Trojans Korfball Club), Catalonia (CK Vallparadis / Assessoria), Portugal (NC Benfica), Czech Republic (Brno KK)
- b) First round matches in Cardiff (Wales) from 24 25 September 2016 for 4 places in the IKF ECup 2017 final. In the event played the champion clubs of FRA (Bonson), GER (KV Adler Rauxel e.V.), HUN (Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE), POL (UKK WUM Warszawa), SCO (Edinburgh City Korfball Club), SVK (SKK Dolphins Prievidza), TUR (Kocaeli University Sport Club), WAL (Cardiff Raptors Korfball Club)

#### Cardiff (Wales), First Round results:

KV Adler Rauxel - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	17 - 3
UKK WUM Warszawa – Cardiff Raptors Korfball Club	24 - 5
Edinburgh City Korfball Club - Bonson	12 -5
Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE - Kocaeli University Sport Club	13 - 8
KV Adler Rauxel - UKK WUM Warszawa	21- 9
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Cardiff Raptors Korfball Club	18 – 6
Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	14 – 7
Kocaeli University Sport Club - Bonson	13 -8
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - UKK WUM Warszawa	13- 15
Bonson - Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE	13 – 22
Kocaeli University Sport Club - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	15 – 12
Cardiff Raptors Korfball Club - KV Adler Rauxel	6 - 16
Cardiff Raptors Korfball Club - Edinburgh City Korfball Club	10 - 14
Bonson - SKK Prievidza Dolphins	10 - 15

First four teams qualified directly for the final round in January 2018 in Sassenheim, The Netherlands: GER (KV Adler Rauxel e.V.), HUN (Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE), POL (UKK WUM Warszawa), TUR (Kocaeli University Sport Club),

# c. The matches in the IKF Europa Cup 2017 final round were:

NC Benfica - KV Adler Rauxel	22 – 5
Brno KK – Kocaeli University Sport Club	27 – 10
TOP/Quoratio – Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE	22 – 12
Trojans KC – KV Adler Rauxel	21 – 11
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - Kocaeli University Sport Club	20 - 2
Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE - Brno KK	9 - 20
Boeckenberg KC – Trojans	22 - 12
TOP/Quoratio - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	26 - 8
Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	23 - 14
KV Adler Rauxel - Boeckenberg KC	5 – 23
TOP/Quoratio - Kocaeli University Sport Club	19 -6
NC Benfica - Trojans KC	9 -10
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - Brno KK	16 -11
Kocaeli University Sport Club - Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE	12 -17
TOP/Quoratio – Brno KK	27 - 9
Boeckenberg KC – NC Benfica	22 - 16
Kocaeli University Sport Club - Guest team LEIDEN *	16 - 23
Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE - KV Adler Rauxel	16 - 24
Brno KK - NC Benfica	20 - 26
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - Trojans KC	23 - 24 (Bronze medal match)
TOP/Quoratio - Boeckenberg KC	37 – 27 (IKF EUROPA CUP FINAL)

Rank		Country	Games	Points	Goals +	Goals -	Diff.
1	TOP/Quoratio	NED	5	15	131	62	69
2	Boeckenberg KC	BEL	4	9	94	70	24
3	Trojans KC	ENG	4	9	67	65	2
4	CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	CAT	5	9	81	76	5
5	NC Benfica	POR	4	6	73	57	16
6	Brno KK	CZE	5	6	87	88	-1
7	KV Adler Rauxel	GER	4	3	45	82	-37
8	Szentendre Kinizsi Honvéd SE	HUN	5	3	67	92	-25
9	Kocaeli University Sport Club	TUR	5	0	46	106	-60
10	Guest team LEIDEN *	NED	1	3	23	16	7

<sup>\* =</sup> Out of Competition : Replaced the team of UKK WUM Warszawa – due to late withdrawal - to complete the number of participants.

### 33. Platja d'Aro (Catalonia) 11 - 13 January 2018 Final Round

- a) On the basis of the 2017 results direct admitted to the 2018 final round tournament the six (6) champion clubs of The Netherlands (TOP/Quoratio), Belgium (AKC/Luma), England (Trojans Korfball Club), Catalonia (CK Vallparadis / Assessoria), Portugal (NC Benfica), Czech Republic (Ceské Budejovice).
- b) First round matches in Prievidza (Slovakia), 23 24 September 2017 for two (2) places in the IKF ECup 2018 final. In this event played eight (8) champion clubs: FRA (Association Korfbal Firminy), GER (SG Pegasus e.V.), HUN (1908 SZAC), POL (AZS Wroclaw), SCO (Edinburgh Mavericks), SVK (SKK Dolphins Prievidza), TUR (Kocaeli University Sport Club), WAL (Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club)

#### Prievidza (Slovakia), First Round Results:

Association Korfbal Firminy (AKF) - AZS Wroclaw (Balluff)	8-12
1908 SZAC KSE - Edinburgh Mavericks	19-9
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - SG Pegasus	9-19
Kocaeli University Sport Club - Cardiff City	19-8
SG Pegasus - AZS Wroclaw (Balluff)	20-10
Edinburgh Mavericks - Kocaeli University Sport Club	12-13
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Association Korfbal Firminy (AKF)	14-7
Cardiff City - 1908 SZAC KSE	10-33
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - AZS Wroclaw (Balluff)	12-12
Edinburgh Mavericks - Cardiff City	9-6
SG Pegasus - Association Korfbal Firminy (AKF)	19-5
Kocaeli University Sport Club - 1908 SZAC KSE	11-12
SG Pegasus - Kocaeli University Sport Club	24-15
AZS Wroclaw (Balluff) - 1908 SZAC KSE	3-23
Association Korfbal Firminy (AKF) - Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club	18-4
SKK Prievidza Dolphins - Edinburgh Mavericks	7-16
Kocaeli University Sport Club - AZS Wroclaw (Balluff)	10-12
SG Pegasus - 1908 SZAC KSE	10-12

#### Final ranking IKF Europa Cup 2018 First Round:

Team	Rank	Games	Points in games	Goals +	Goals -	Diff				
1908 SZAC KSE	1	5	14	99	43	56				
SG Pegasus	2	5	12	92	51	41				
AZS Wroclaw (Balluff)	3	5	9	49	71	-22				
Kocaeli University Sport Club	4	5	7	68	68					
Edinburgh Mavericks	5	4	6	46	45	1				
SKK Prievidza Dolphins	6	4	3	40	54	-14				
Association Korfbal Firminy (AKF)	7	4	3	38	49	-11				
Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club	8	4	0	28	79	-51				

# c) The matches in the IKF Europa Cup Final Round 2018 were:

Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL) - SG Pegasus	15-16
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - AKC Luma	8-15
TOP/SolarCompleet – Trojans	20-10
NC Benfica - 1908 SZAC KSE	15-13
TOP/SolarCompleet - SG Pegasus	30-20
AKC Luma - 1908 SZAC KSE	19-6
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - NC Benfica	16-18
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL) – Trojans	17-25
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria - 1908 SZAC KSE	17-16
TOP/SolarCompleet - Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL)	30-11
Trojans - SG Pegasus	14-19
AKC Luma - NC Benfica	17-8
Trojans KC - 1908 SZAC KSE	17-13
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL) - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	13-12
TOP/SolarCompleet - NC Benfica	27-13
SG Pegasus - AKC/Luma	9-21
1908 SZAC KSE - CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	17-24
Trojans KC - Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL)	30-18
NC Benfica - SG Pegasus	19-22 (Bronze medal match)
TOP/SolarCompleet - AKC/Luma	28-21 (IKF EUROPA CUP FINAL)

# Final ranking IKF Europa Cup 2018:

Team	Rank	Games	Points in games	Goals +	Goals -	Diff
TOP/SolarCompleet	1	5	15	135	75	60
AKC/Luma	2	5	12	93	59	34
SG Pegasus	3	5	9	86	99	-13
NC Benfica	4	5	6	73	95	-22
Trojans KC	5	5	9	96	87	9
Ceské Budejovice (KCC SOKOL)	6	5	3	74	113	-39
CK Vallparadis / Assessoria	7	5	6	77	79	-2
1908 SZAC KSE	8	5	0	65	92	-27

## 34. Kortrijk (Belgium), 10 - 12 January 2019

- a) On the basis of the 2018 results direct admitted to the 2019 final round tournament the six (6) champion clubs of The Netherlands (TOP/Quoratio), Belgium (Boeckenberg KC), England (Trojans Korfball Club), Germany (SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e.v.), Portugal (NC Benfica), Czech Republic (Brno KK).
- b) First round matches in Koceali (Turkey), 21 23 September 2018 for two (2) places in the IKF ECup 2019 final. In this event played eight (8) champion clubs: Hungary (1908 SZAC KSE), Turkey (Marmara University Sport Club), Catalonia (Club Korfbal Castellbisbal), France (Bonson FJEP) and Wales (Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club.

#### Koceali (Turkey), First Round Results:

Marmara University Sport Club - Club Korfbal Castellbisbal	11-7
Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club - Bonson FJEP	12-14
Bonson FJEP - Club Korfbal Castellbisbal	6-20
Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club - 1908 SZAC KSE	4-23
1908 SZAC KSE - Bonson FJEP	23-12
Marmara University Sport Club - Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club	20-4
Club Korfbal Castellbisbal - 1908 SZAC KSE	12-17
Marmara University Sport Club - Bonson FJEP	12-10
Marmara University Sport Club - 1908 SZAC KSE	10-19
Club Korfbal Castellbisbal - Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club	19-4

### Final ranking IKF Europa Cup 2018 First Round:

Team	Rank	Games	Points in games	Goals +	Goals -	Diff
1908 SZAC KSE	1	4	12	82	38	44
Marmara University Sport Club	2	4	9	53	40	13
Club Korfbal Castellbisbal	3	4	6	58	38	20
Bonson FJEP	4	4	3	42	67	-25
Cardiff City & Met Korfball Club	5	4	0	24	76	-52

#### c) The matches in the IKF Europa Cup Final Round 2019 were:

Marmara University Sport Club - NC Benfica	8-23
1908 SZAC KSE - Brno KK	16-10
Boeckenberg KC - Trojans KC	13-12
TOP/SolarCompleet - SG Pegasus	14-6
Trojans KC - Marmara University Sport Club	21-6
SG Pegasus - 1908 SZAC KSE	11-8
Boeckenberg KC - NC Benfica	13-6
TOP/SolarCompleet - Brno KK	25-8

NC Benfica - Trojans KC	13-14
Brno KK - SG Pegasus	15-17
Boeckenberg KC - Marmara University Sport Club	16-13
1908 SZAC KSE - TOP/SolarCompleet	9-18
NC Benfica - Brno KK	9-8
Marmara University Sport Club - 1908 SZAC KSE	7-17
Trojans KC - TOP/SolarCompleet	5-21
Boeckenberg KC - SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e.v.	17-12
Brno KK - Marmara University Sport Club	21-11
NC Benfica - 1908 SZAC KSE	13-12
Trojans KC - SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e.v.	25-11 (Bronze medal match)
TOP/SolarCompleet - Boeckenberg KC	31-16 (IKF EUROPA CUP FINAL)

# Final ranking IKF Europa Cup 2019:

Team	Rank	Games	Points in games	Goals +	Goals -	Diff
TOP/SolarCompleet	1	5	15	109	44	65
Boeckenberg KC	2	5	12	75	74	1
Trojans KC	3	5	9	77	64	13
SG Pegasus Rommerscheid 1991 e.v.	4	5	6	57	79	-22
NC Benfica	5	5	9	64	55	9
1908 SZAC KSE	6	5	6	62	59	3
Brno KK	7	5	3	62	78	-16
Marmara University Sport Club	8	5	0	45	98	-53